
NOTICE AND AGENDA
ZONING BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT

MAY 31, 2023 - 05:30 PM
REGULAR MEETING

CITY HALL-COUNCIL CHAMBERS
415 WEST UNIVERSITY DRIVE

EDINBURG, TEXAS 78541

1. CALL MEETING TO ORDER, ESTABLISH QUORUM

A. Prayer

B. Pledge of Allegiance

2. CERTIFICATION OF PUBLIC NOTICE

3. DISCLOSURE OF CONFLICT OF INTEREST
 
4. PUBLIC COMMENTS

A. Public Comments are limited to three (3) minutes. If a resident desires to make a
public comment, please notify the Chairperson prior to the start of the meeting. A
spokesperson for large groups is required. We ask for everyone's cooperation in
following these procedures.

5. THE FOLLOWING ARE THE MEETING PROCEDURES USED BY THE ZONING
BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT:

 
  A. All items are generally considered as they appear on the agenda. As each item is

introduced:
 
  B. Staff will present its findings and recommendation on the item being considered.
 
  C. The party making the request may make a presentation and may address the Board on

any issues arising during the discussion of the item being considered.
 
  D. Anyone in the audience desiring to speak in favor or in opposition may do so. A 3-5

minute time limit will be given to each person interested in speaking on the item. The
use of a spokesperson for large groups of people will be required.

 
  E. Once the Chair closes the public hearing, the Board may question anyone and

maintain any discussion which clarifies the proposal and will then take what action it
believes to be appropriate.

 
  F. A minimum of four votes are required for an item to be approved by the Board.
 



6. MINUTES

A. Consider Approval of the minutes for the April 26, 2023 Regular Meeting

7. PUBLIC HEARINGS

A. Consider Variances to the City’s Unified Development Code, Section 3.102(C)(1),
Lot and Design Standards, Single-Family Detached Lot and Building Standards, Lot
Area, Lot Width, and Setbacks, the east half of Lot 7, Block 243, Original Townsite
of Edinburg, located at 1123 East Cano Street, as requested by Ramiro A. Resendez

B. Consider Variances to the City’s Unified Development Code, Section 5.207(F),
Easements, Encroachments and Removal of Encroachments, Lot 34, Sugar Oaks
Subdivision, located at 3335 Nelson Avenue, as requested by Amado Arteaga on
behalf of Andrew Alberto Arteaga

C. Consider Variances to the City’s Unified Development Code, Section 5.207(F),
Easements, Encroachments and Removal of Encroachments, Lot 89, Atwood Village
Subdivision, located at 906 North Blair Avenue, as requested by Gerardo Rodriguez
on behalf of Albino Garcia Escamilla

D. Consider Variance to the City’s Unified Development Code, Section 3.102(A)(1),
General Standards, Building Separation, Lot 12 & 16, Bel-Air Estates Subdivision,
located at 2507 North Vineyard Avenue and 2523 North Vineyard Avenue, as
requested by Rene Barrera, P.E. on behalf of DGV, L.P. – Dr. Parul Desai, Member

E. Consider Variances to the City’s Unified Development Code, Section 5.207(F),
Easements, Encroachments and Removal of Encroachments and Section 7.102(D)
(2); Nonconformities; General Provisions; Alteration, Enlargement, or
Abandonment; Nonconforming Uses, Lot 60, Ebony Terrace No. 2 Unit C
Subdivision, Located at 1207 Jo Ann Court, as requested by Letisia Caballero

8. INFORMATION ONLY
 

A. Attendance Roster

9. ADJOURNMENT

I hereby certify that this notice of meeting was posted in accordance with the Open Meetings Act,
V.T.C.A., Government Code, Section 551.041, at the bulletin board located at the main entrance to
the City offices of the City of Edinburg, (415 West University Drive), visible and accessible to the
general public after regular working hours, at 4:00 P.M. on May 26, 2023 .
 

 Claudia Mariscal, Administrative Assistant
 

MEMBERS WHO ARE UNABLE TO ATTEND ARE ASKED TO NOTIFY THE
PLANNING AND ZONING DEPARTMENT AT 956-388-8202

NOTICE
 
PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES WHO NEED TO COMMUNICATE MORE EFFECTIVELY WITH CITY OFFICIALS AND WHO
MAY NEED AUXILIARY AIDS OR SERVICES SUCH AS INTERPRETERS FOR PERSONS WHO ARE DEAF OR HEARING
IMPAIRED ARE REQUESTED TO CONTACT THE OFFICE OF THE CITY SECRETARY AT (956) 388-8204 THREE WORKING
DAYS PRIOR TO ANY MEETING SO THAT APPROPRIATE ARRANGEMENTS CAN BE MADE.



  

NOTICE AND AGENDA 

ZONING BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT 

APRIL 26, 2023 - 5:30 P.M. 

REGULAR MEETING 

COMMUNITY MEETING ROOM   

415 W. UNIVERSITY DR.  

EDINBURG, TEXAS 78539 

MINUTES 

 

Members Present:                                                                                  Absent:                                                                                                                                                                                            
Marc Moran 

Michael Cantu                                                                                        

Ponciano Longoria                                                                                  

Ruben Ruiz    

Eliseo Garza Jr.                                                                                 

Gregory Vasquez 

Marc A. Gonzalez 

Diane Teter 

 

 

Staff:  

Jaime Acevedo , Director of Planning & Zoning 

Omar Ochoa, City Attorney  

Rita Lee Guerrero, Assistant Director Planning & Zoning 

Leonel Duran, City Forester  

Claudia Mariscal, Administrative Assistant 

Robert Hernandez, Engineering Department  

Sergio Diaz, Assistant Fire Marshall 

 

1.  CALL MEETING TO ORDER, ESTABLISH QUORUM  

 

Chairperson Marc Moran called the meeting to order at 5:30 P.M.  
  

A.   Prayer – Prayer was announced.  
  

B.   Pledge of Allegiance - The Pledge of Allegiance was said.  

2.  CERTIFICATION OF PUBLIC NOTICE  



  

Jaime Acevedo certified the agenda had been posted on April 21, 2023 at 4:47 P.M.   

3. DISCLOSURE OF CONFLICT OF INTEREST 

  

4.  PUBLIC COMMENTS   
  

A.   Public Comments are limited to three (3) minutes. If a resident desires to make a public 

comment, please notify the Chairperson prior to the start of the meeting. A spokesperson 

for large groups is required. We ask for everyone's cooperation in following these 

procedures.   

5. THE FOLLOWING ARE THE MEETING PROCEDURES USED BY THE ZONING 

BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT: 

  

    A.  All items are generally considered as they appear on the agenda, as each item is 

introduced. 

  

    B.  Staff will present its findings and recommendation on the item being considered. 

  

    C.  The party making the request may make a presentation and may address the Board on any 

issues arising during the discussion of the item being considered. 

  

    D.  Anyone in the audience desiring to speak in favor or in opposition may do so. A 3 minute 

time limit will be given to each person interested in speaking on the item. The use of a 

spokesperson for large groups of people will be required. 

  

    E.  Once the Chair closes the public hearing, the Board may question anyone and maintain 

any discussion which clarifies the proposal and will then take what action it believes to be 

appropriate. 

  

    F.  A minimum of four votes are required for an item to be approved by the Board.  

6.   ABSENCES 

 

A. Consider excusing the absence of Board Member Marc Moran from the March 29, 2023 

Regular Meeting 

          

 

BEING NO DISCUSSION, A MOTION WAS MADE BY BOARD MEMBER MICHAEL 

CANTU AND WAS SECONDED BY BOARD MEMBER RUBEN RUIZ TO EXCUSE 

THE ABSENCE. MOTION CARRIED WITH A VOTE OF 8-0. 

 

       B.   Consider excusing the absence of Board Member Diane Teter from the March 29, 2023        

Regular Meeting 

         



BEING NO DISCUSSION, A MOTION WAS MADE BY VICE CHAIRPERSON 

PONCIANO LONGORIA AND WAS SECONDED BY BOARD MEMBER MICHAEL 

CANTU TO EXCUSE THE ABSENCE. MOTION CARRIED WITH A VOTE OF 8-0.  

AFTER THE ITEMS FOR THE ABSENCES WERE VOTED ON BOARD MEMBER 

DIANE TETER STATED THAT SHE WANTED TO DISCUSS THE EXCUSED 

ABSENCES. CITY ATTORNEY OMAR OCHOA EXPLAINED THAT THE ITEMS 

WERE VOTED ON SO THEY COULD NOT BE RECONSIDERED AND SINCE THE 

TOPIC WAS NOT A LINE ITEM IT COULD NOT BE DISCUSSED.  

 

7.  MINUTES   
 

A.   Consider approval of the Minutes for the March 29, 2023 Regular Meeting 

 

 

BOARD MEMBER, MICHAEL CANTU MOVED TO CONSIDER APPROVAL OF THE 

MINUTES FOR THE MARCH 29, 2023 REGULAR MEETING. SECONDED BY BOARD 

MEMBER, GREGORY VASQUEZ. THE MOTION TO APPROVE CARRIED 

UNANIMOUSLY WITH A VOTE OF 8-0 

 

8. PUBLIC HEARINGS   
 

A.  Consider Variance to the City’s Unified Development Code, Section 3.102(C)(1), Lot and 

Design Standards, Single-Family Detached Lot and Building Standards, Lot Area, Lot 

Width, and Setbacks, the east half of Lot 7, Block 243, Original Townsite of Edinburg, 

located at 1123 East Cano Street, as requested by Ramiro Resendez  

  

DUE TO INCORRECT INFORMATION DISTRIBUTED ON THE MEETING 

PACKETS, THIS ITEM WAS RECOMMENDED TO BE TABLED.  

BEING NO FURTHER DISCUSSION, A MOTION WAS MADE BY VICE 

CHAIRPERSON, PONCIANO LONGORIA AND WAS SECONDED BY BOARD 

MEMBER GREGORY VASQUEZ TO TABLE THE VARIANCE REQUEST. 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY WITH A VOTE OF 8-0.  

 
 B. Consider Variances to the City’s Unified Development Code, Section 3.202(A), Lot and 

Design Standards, Nonresidential and Mixed-Use Lot Standards, Setbacks,  Lot 1, 

Edinburg Consolidated Independent School District Subdivision No. 12, located at 909 

South Mon Mack Road, as requested by Joe Hernandez of SLR Building Contractors, LLC, 

on behalf of Edinburg Consolidated Independent School District 

MR. VICTOR GONZALEZ THE FACILITIES DIRECTOR FOR THE EDNBURG 

SCHOOL DISTRICT WAS PRESENT AND EXPLINED THAT THEY WERE 



GOING TO PLACE THEIR HOUSEKEEPING PADS FOR THEIR AIR 

CONDITION UNITS IN THE ADDITION. MR. GONZALEZ ADDED THAT THEY 

WOULD BE ADDING 15 FEET TO THE EXISTNG STRUCTURE. MR. ESTEBAN 

ZAMORA THE ARCHITECT WAS PRESENT AS WELL AND EXPLAINED 

THAT THE ADDITION WOULD ENCROACH.  BEING NO ONE WAS PRESENT 

IN OPPOSITION OR IN FAVOR OF THE VARIANCE REQUEST.  

BEING NO FURTHER DISCUSSION, A MOTION WAS MADE BY BOARD 

MEMBER, MICHAEL CANTU AND WAS SECONDED BY VICE CHAIRPERSON 

PONCIANO LONGORIA TO APPROVE THE VARIANCE REQUEST. MOTION 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY WITH A VOTE OF 8-0. 

 
 C. Consider Variance to the City’s Unified Development Code, Section 3.202(A), Lot and 

Design Standards, Nonresidential and Mixed-Use Lot Standards, Setbacks, Lot 1, Edinburg 

Consolidated Independent School District Subdivision No. 13, located at 10010 Via 

Fernandez Street, as requested by Joe Hernandez of SLR Building Contractors, LLC, on 

behalf of Edinburg Consolidated Independent School District 

MR. ESTEBAN ZAMORA THE ARCHITECT WORKING ON THE PROJECT 

WAS PRESENT AND EXPLAINED THAT THEY WERE EXTENDING THE 

STRUCTURE AS WELL FOR THE HOUSEKEEPING PADS FOR THE AIR 

CONDITION UNITS AND IT WOULD ENCROACH EIGHT FEET. MS. ANITA 

GUTIERREZ, RESIDENT WAS PRESENT AND ASK HOW THE VARIANCE 

WOULD AFFECT THE SURROUNDING PROPERTIES. BEING NO ONE WAS 

PRESENT IN OPPOSITION OR IN FAVOR OF THE VARIANCE REQUEST.  

BEING NO FURTHER DISCUSSION, A MOTION WAS MADE BY VICE 

CHAIRPERSON PONCIANO LONGORIA AND WAS SECONDED BY BOARD 

MEMBER, MICHAEL CANTU TO APPROVE THE VARIANCE REQUEST. 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY WITH A VOTE OF 8-0. 

 
 D. Consider Variance to the City’s Unified Development Code, Section 3.102( C)(1), Lot and 

Design Standards, Single-Family Detached Lot and Building Standards, Setbacks, the east 

1.50 foot of Lot 1 and all of Lot 2, Block 204, Original Townsite of Edinburg, located at 

606 East Kuhn Street, as requested by Rene Olivarez 

BEING NO ONE WAS PRESENT IN OPPOSITION OR IN FAVOR OF THE 

VARIANCE REQUEST. BOARD MEMBER MICHAEL CANTU ASKED ABOUT 

THE SIDE SETBACKS. MR. JAIME ACEVEDO STATED THAT THERE 

SHOULD BE A SIX-FOOT SETBACK. VICE CHAIRPERSON PONICANO 

LONGORIA ASKED WHAT THE DISTANCE WAS FROM THE NEIGHBORS 

HOME TO THE STRUCTURE. MR. ACEVEDO MENTIONED BASED ON THE 

PICTURE THERE WAS NO MEASUREMENT PROVIDED. CHAIRPERSON 

MARC MORAN ASKED STAFF IF THERE WAS A SIZE LIMIT FOR THE 



EXTRA STRUCTURE. MR. ACEVEDO REPSONDED THAT THERE WAS NO 

LIMIT BUT THE APPLICANT WILL COMPLY WITH THE REAR SETBACKS. 

BEING NO FURTHER DISCUSSION, A MOTION WAS MADE BY VICE 

CHAIRPERSON PONCIANO LONGORIA AND WAS SECONDED BY BOARD 

MEMBER, GREGORY VASQUEZ TO APPROVE THE VARIANCE REQUEST. 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY WITH A VOTE OF 8-0. 

BOARD MEMBER ELISEO GARZA JR. SUGGESTED THAT THE BOARD ADD 

A CONDITION TO THE VARIANCE REGARDING A FIRE WALL. CITY 

ATTORNEY OMAR OCHOA STATED THAT THE BOARD WOULD NEED TO 

RECONSIDER THE 1ST MOTION SINCE IT WAS ALREADY VOTED ON.  

A MOTION WAS MADE BY BOARD MEMBER ELISEO GARZA JR. AND WAS 

SECONDED BY VICE CHAIRPERSON PONCIANO LONGORIA TO 

RECONSIDER THE FIRST VOTE. MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY WITH 

A VOTE OF 8-0. 

THEN A MOTION WAS MADE BY VICE CHAIRPERSON PONCIANO 

LONGORIA AND WAS SECONDED BY BOARD MEMBER, ELISEIO GARZA 

JR. TO APPROVE THE VARIANCE REQUEST WITH THE CONDITION THAT 

IF THE STRUCTURE DOES NOT MEET THE REQUIREMENTS A FIREWALL 

IS NEEDED. MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY WITH A VOTE OF 8-0. 

 
 E. Consider Variance to the City’s Unified Development Code, Section 3.202 (A)(3), Lot and 

Design Standards, Nonresidential and Mixed-Use Lot Standards, Maximum Floor Area 

Ratio, 6.127 acres out of Lot 7, Section 276, Texas-Mexican Railway Company’s Survey 

Subdivision, located at 300 North McColl Road, as requested by Melden & Hunt, Inc. on 

behalf of Foucheck-Meyer Co., Inc.  

DELLA ROBLES FROM MELDEN & HUNT INC. WAS PRESENT AND 

ADDRESSED THE BOARD. BEING NO ONE WAS PRESENT IN OPPOSITION 

OR IN FAVOR OF THE VARIANCE REQUEST. 

BEING NO FURTHER DISCUSSION, A MOTION WAS MADE BOARD 

MEMBER RUBEN RUIZ AND WAS SECONDED BY BOARD MEMBER 

MICHAEL CANTU TO APPROVE THE VARIANCE REQUEST. MOTION 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY WITH A VOTE OF 8-0.  

  
 

10. INORMATION ONLY 

   
A.   Attendance Roster 

 

11.  ADJOURNMENT  



 

There being no further business to consider, the meeting was adjourned at 6:21 P.M. 

 

MOTION WAS MADE BY BOARD MEMBER MICHAEL CANTU AND SECONDED 

BY BOARD MEMBER GREGORY VASQUEZ TO ADJOURN. THE MEETING AT 6:21 

P.M. MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY. 

 

   

Claudia Mariscal 

  Claudia Mariscal, Administrative Assistant 

Planning & Zoning Department 

  
MEMBERS WHO ARE UNABLE TO ATTEND ARE ASKED TO NOTIFY THE PLANNING AND ZONING DEPARTMENT AT 

956-388-8202 
  

NOTICE 
  
PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES WHO NEED TO COMMUNICATE MORE EFFECTIVELY WITH CITY OFFICIALS AND WHO 

MAY NEED AUXILIARY AIDS OR SERVICES SUCH AS INTERPRETERS FOR PERSONS WHO ARE DEAF OR HEARING 

IMPAIRED ARE REQUESTED TO CONTACT THE OFFICE OF THE CITY SECRETARY AT (956) 388-8204 THREE WORKING 

DAYS PRIOR TO ANY MEETING SO THAT APPROPRIATE ARRANGEMENTS CAN BE MADE. 

 

 

 



  
Variance Request 

 

RAMIRO A. RESENDEZ  Page 1 

Planning & Zoning Staff Report Prepared on: May 23 2023 
ZONING BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT Regular Meeting:  May 31, 2023, 2023 

Agenda Item 
Consider Variances to the City’s Unified Development Code, Section 3.102(C)(1), Lot and Design 
Standards, Single-Family Detached Lot and Building Standards, Lot Area, Lot Width, and Setbacks, 
the east half of Lot 7, Block 243, Original Townsite of Edinburg, located at 1123 East Cano Street, 
as requested by Ramiro A. Resendez 
 

Request 
The applicant is requesting a variance to the City’s Unified Development Code (UDC) Section 
3.102(C)(1) as it applies to side yard setbacks and minimum lot area and width standards for 
residential development. The applicant is proposing to construct a single-family detached home 
4 ½  ft. from each side property line on a lot that does not meet the minimum lot area or lot width 
requirements for the Residential, Primary (RP) District. 

Property Location and Vicinity 
The property is located on the north side of East Cano Street, approximately 305 ft. east of South 
21st Avenue, a half block south of East University Drive. The property is zoned Residential, Primary 
(RP) District. Adjacent zoning is Commercial, General (CG) District to the north and Residential, 
Primary (RP) District to the south, east, and west. Surrounding land uses are single-family 
residential with general commercial uses to the north.  

Background and History 
The property is part of the Edinburg Original Townsite recorded in 1913. The lot was split into 
two equal halves in 1940 and is vacant. The applicant acquired the property earlier this year and 
proposes to construct a single-family detached home at this location. However, the lot, as 
divided, does not meet the minimum lot or area requirements for development. The applicant is 
also proposing 4 ½ ft. side setbacks due to the property constraints. Variance is needed to 
proceed with the project as planned. 

Staff mailed notice of this variance request to 41 neighboring property owners. No comments in 
favor or against this request had been received at the time this report was prepared. 

Analysis 
The original lot at this location was 50 ft. wide with 142 ft. of depth for a total area of 7,100 sq. 
ft.  When divided in 1940, the width was reduced to 25 ft. and the area was reduced to 3,550 sq. 
ft. UDC Section 3.102 requires a minimum lot width of 50 ft. and a minimum lot area of 5,000 sq. 
for single-family development the Residential, Primary (RP) District. 



Planning & Zoning Staff Report 

RAMIRO A. RESENDEZ  Page 2 

A site plan submitted by the applicant shows a proposed residential structure placed 4 ½  feet. 
from each of the side property lines. UDC Section 3.102 requires a minimum side yard setback of 
6 ft.  

Recommendation 
Staff recommends disapproval of the variance’s requested. Staff recommends the applicant 
comply with the requirements of the Unified Development Code.  If the board is to approve the 
variance request to the lot area, we ask that the applicant meet all other building safety 
requirements.  

If approved, the applicant will need to comply with all other requirements during the permitting 
process. If approved, $40 fee, payable to the County of Hidalgo, County Clerk’s Office, for the 
recording of the ZBA order is also required. A location map, aerial map, photo, subdivision plat, 
site plan, and application from the property owner are attached for the Board’s consideration. 

Prepared by: Approved by: 
Rita Lee Guerrero Jaime Acevedo  
Assistant Director of Planning & Zoning Director of Planning & Zoning  
 



 

RAMIRO A. RESENDEZ  Page 3 

UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT CODE 
(Ord. No. 2022-4764, 08/09/2022)  

ARTICLE 3 – LOT AND DESIGN STANDARDS 
Division 3.100, Standards for Rural and Residential Districts 
Sec. 3.102, Standards for Rural and Residential Development 
…  
C. Lot and Building Standards by Housing Type. 

1. Single-Family Detached. This housing type is consists of a residence located on a 
privately-owned lot with private yards on each side of the unit, as shown in Figure 3.102-
1, Single-Family Detached. Table 3.102-1, Single-Family Detached Lot and Building 
Standards, sets out the dimensional standards for single-family detached units. 

Table 3.102-1 
Single-Family Detached Lot and Building Standards 

 Minimum Maximum 

Zoning District 
 

Lot 
Area 

 
Lot 

Width 
(ft) 

Street 
Yard1 (ft) 

Street  
Side 
Yard 
(ft) 

Side 
Yard 
(ft) 

Rear 
Yard (ft) 

Building Height 
(ft) 

Agriculture and Open 
Space (AO) 5 ac. 330 60 30 30 404 35 / 602 

Residential, Suburban 
(RS) 

15,000 
sf 90 30 15 15 304 35 

Residential, Primary 
(RP) 

5,000 
sf 50 20 / 183 10 6 204 35 

Residential, Multifamily 
and Urban (RM) 

4,000 
sf5 405 10 / 183 10 56 15 35 

TABLE NOTES:  
1Street yard refers to front yard of lot. The minimum street yard setback shall be 15 feet for cul-de-sac/irregular lots. 
2The second height refers to agricultural structures. 
3The first number is the house setback; the second is the setback for a front load garage. 
4For cul-de-sac and irregular lots, the minimum rear yard setback is 15 feet. 
5If adjacent to an AO or RS district, lots on the perimeter of the subdivision shall meet the lot area and lot width 
requirements of the RP district.  
6A minimum building separation of 12 feet is required and may be reduced only for structures meeting approved 
building and fire codes. 

 

https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/edinburg-tx-udc-update/doclibrary.aspx?id=387b9593-b53a-45fa-8f36-a57e90534c8c
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/edinburg-tx-udc-update/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=5098


E OWASSA RD

E ALBERTA RD

N
 F

R
O

N
T

A
G

E
 R

D

E INGLE RD

N
 T

A
Y

L
O

R
 R

D

W ROGERS RD

S
 A

L
A

M
O

 R
D

E DAVIS RD

LARK AVE

N
 B

E
N

T
S

E
N

 R
D

N
 2

3
R

D
 S

T

F
L

O
R

E
S

 S
T

W SCHUNIOR ST

W SPRAGUE ST

E RAMSEYER RD

TRENTON RD

E TEXAS RD

N
 S

E
M

IN
A

R
Y

 R
D

BENITO A RAMIREZ RD

E FM 490

N
 B

IG
 5

 R
D

N
 I

-6
9

C
S

 I-
69

C

B
R

U
S

H
L

IN
E

 R
D

E
U

B
A

N
K

S
 R

D

MONTE CRISTO RD

E FM 2812

S
 M

C
C

O
L

L
 R

D

MILE 9 RD

S
 T

O
W

E
R

 R
D

W CHAPIN RD

S
 J

A
C

K
S

O
N

 R
D

E ROGERS RD

E MILE 17 1/2 N

MILE 13 RD N

N
 W

A
R

E
 R

D

N
 R

O
O

T
H

 R
D

N
 H

O
E

H
N

 R
D

W FM 490FM 490

SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT
APPLICANT AND/OR SUBDIVISION:

RAMIRO RESENDEZ / 1123 E CANO ST

CITY LIMITS

APPLICANT OR SUBDIVISION SITE

STREETS_RCL

1 in = 7,727 ft
®

EDINBURG NEW DEVELOPMENT MAP



3

4

1211

9

8

8

10

12

5

9

23

2 3 4 5 61

16

7
2345

7

891011

3 4 5 6

1720 12 1217

89

2 3 5

2
3
4
5

10

24
25
26

7

91011

0

2 3 4 5

5 6

11
12
13

1

1618

9

7

5

6

8

7

9

1

4

15

11

2

9

13

7 9

1

17

10

1

7

1

8

10

3 5

712

10 10

2

710
12

51

0

2

4 6

4

6

7

9

8

20

22

9

11

5

7

3 5

11

1

79

4 6

7

4

9

1

911

6

16

0

1

7

2 4

81112

1 2

5 6

78

1 2 3 4 3 46

7 8

7

8

131517

511

6

8

15
16
17
18

12

14

19

21

23

8

10

6

8

1 4 6

9128

3

5
6

1

2

5

5

3

62 134

1

109 7 12

2442

8712 11

5665

108

7

7

6

8

51

7

161718

1

912 2218

3 2

910 8

1331

42

9

31

118

4 3 2 1

7 9 10 11

1 2

7

15

5665

6 5 4

22 21 20 19 1316 141723 18

5

321

12 11

24

12 109 8 7

5 6

1

19 21 23

9

11

8
10

3

79

10 5

10 7

5

810

11 7

9 8 7

65

11

9101112

4321

12

541

12

3456

10 11 12

6

910111212

1211

1 4 6

9

5

10 8

46

10 8 12

2

7 10

6

8

42

8 8

1

6

810 8

35 6 3

4653

8

3 5

10

6

11 9

56

11 9 11

1

9 11

5

7 9

53

7

3

5

711 9

4

246

7

5

5
1

42

9 7
3 6

97

6

7 6

62

1816

2

12
1

0
10

4 1

31

2

8

1

12 10 16 18

4

8

9 8

64

4

9 8 7

7810

4

5

2 1 1 1

1231

12 11 10
5

11

654

7

4 3 2

8 7 13 14

6 5

12

3 1

7

6 5 4

9

8

4

10 8

1

11 911

1

17

7 2

11 9 15 17

3

8

9 7

9 7

2

12 810

9 4

11

12 8 2

6543

1

1212 11

345

654

1

12

12 11 7

123

7 7 98 10 12

123

1

10 9

3 4

7

654

42

7 10 10

1246

97

6 5
9 8 7

31

4

2

9

54

2 3 4 5

151413

11

6

78

3

3 23 5

21

6 4

79 810

1

1 6 5

11 8

20

7

5

4

1

12 11 10 9 8 7 7

654

1

8

64

10

2122

5

7

2

5 6

8107

1 3

8

1819

9118

2 4

7

11

14 1315

9

12

7

1 8

1314

74

3 4

2 9

1215

6

6543

3 52

12

891011

1

9711 2016

2 3 4

108712

1

1211 13

65

9 16

1

12 7

6

9

3

0

0

3

0

1

1 1

0

1

7

5 9

121098654321

1

104

654321 7
1

10

A

1 2

1

4 3

6

1 2

11

2

12

0

0

0

6

S
 I

-6
9

C

S
 2

4
T

H
 A

V
E

S
 2

1
S

T
 A

V
E S

 2
3

R
D

 A
V

E

S
 2

0
T

H
 A

V
E S

 2
2

N
D

 A
V

E

S
 V

E
T

E
R

A
N

S
 B

L
V

D

S
 1

9
T

H
 A

V
E

N
 2

2
N

D
 P

L

E  U N I V E R S I T Y  D R

E  L O E B  S T

E
FAY
S T

N
 1

9
T

H
 A

V
E

E  C H A M P I O N  S T

E  FAY  S T

N
 V

E
T

E
R

A
N

S
 B

L
V

D

N
 2

1
S

T
 A

V
E

E
M A H L

S T

E  C A N O  S T

N
 2

0
T

H
 A

V
E

E  M C I N T Y R E  S T

E  K U H N  S T

E
L O E B

S T
E  L O E B
S T

E  K U H N
S T

E
C A N O
S T

S
 2

5
T

H
 A

V
E

E  M A H L  S T

E  S T U B B S  S T

E  S A M A N O  S T

N
 2

5
T

H
 A

V
E

E  P E T E R  S T

N
 2

2
N

D
 A

V
E

N
 2

4
T

H
 A

V
E

S
2

4
T

H
A

V
E

E L
J A R D I N

C I R

A
C

C
E

S
S

R
A

M
P

A
C

C
E

S
S

 R
A

M
P

E
X

I T
 R

A
M

P
N

 I
-6

9
C

N
 I

-6
9

C

U
N

I V
E

R
S

I T
Y

D
R

E
X

IT

S
 I

-6
9

C

AERIAL MAP

APPLICANT OR SUBDIVISION SITEAPPLICANT AND/OR SUBDIVISION:

RAMIRO RESENDEZ / 1123 E CANO ST

CITY LIMITS

APPLICANT OR SUBDIVISION
SITE

1 in = 400 ft

®



3

4

1211

9

8

8

10

12

5

9

23

2 3 4 5 61

16

7
2345

7

891011

3 4 5 6

1720 12 1217

89

2 3 5

2
3
4
5

10

24
25
26

7

91011

0

2 3 4 5

5 6

11
12
13

1

1618

9

7

5

6

8

7

9

1

4

15

11

2

9

13

7 9

1

17

10

1

7

1

8

10

3 5

712

10 10

2

710
12

51

0

2

4 6

4

6

7

9

8

20

22

9

11

5

7

3 5

11

1

79

4 6

7

4

9

1

911

6

16

0

1

7

2 4

81112

1 2

5 6

78

1 2 3 4 3 46

7 8

7

8

131517

511

6

8

15
16
17
18

12

14

19

21

23

8

10

6

8

1 4 6

9128

3

5
6

1

2

5

5

3

62 134

1

109 7 12

2442

8712 11

5665

108

7

7

6

8

51

7

161718

1

912 2218

3 2

910 8

1331

42

9

31

118

4 3 2 1

7 9 10 11

1 2

7

15

5665

6 5 4

22 21 20 19 1316 141723 18

5

321

12 11

24

12 109 8 7

5 6

1

19 21 23

9

11

8
10

3

79

10 5

10 7

5

810

11 7

9 8 7

65

11

9101112

4321

12

541

12

3456

10 11 12

6

910111212

1211

1 4 6

9

5

10 8

46

10 8 12

2

7 10

6

8

42

8 8

1

6

810 8

35 6 3

4653

8

3 5

10

6

11 9

56

11 9 11

1

9 11

5

7 9

53

7

3

5

711 9

4

246

7

5

5
1

42

9 7
3 6

97

6

7 6

62

1816

2

12
1

0
10

4 1

31

2

8

1

12 10 16 18

4

8

9 8

64

4

9 8 7

7810

4

5

2 1 1 1

1231

12 11 10
5

11

654

7

4 3 2

8 7 13 14

6 5

12

3 1

7

6 5 4

9

8

4

10 8

1

11 911

1

17

7 2

11 9 15 17

3

8

9 7

9 7

2

12 810

9 4

11

12 8 2

6543

1

1212 11

345

654

1

12

12 11 7

123

7 7 98 10 12

123

1

10 9

3 4

7

654

42

7 10 10

1246

97

6 5
9 8 7

31

4

2

9

54

2 3 4 5

151413

11

6

78

3

3 23 5

21

6 4

79 810

1

1 6 5

11 8

20

7

5

4

1

12 11 10 9 8 7 7

654

1

8

64

10

2122

5

7

2

5 6

8107

1 3

8

1819

9118

2 4

7

11

14 1315

9

12

7

1 8

1314

74

3 4

2 9

1215

6

6543

3 52

12

891011

1

9711 2016

2 3 4

108712

1

1211 13

65

9 16

1

12 7

6

9

3

0

0

3

0

1

1 1

0

1

7

5 9

121098654321

1

104

654321 7
1

10

A

1 2

1

4 3

6

1 2

11

2

12

0

0

0

6

S
 I

-6
9

C

S
 2

4
T

H
 A

V
E

S
 2

1
S

T
 A

V
E S

 2
3

R
D

 A
V

E

S
 2

0
T

H
 A

V
E S

 2
2

N
D

 A
V

E

S
 V

E
T

E
R

A
N

S
 B

L
V

D

S
 1

9
T

H
 A

V
E

N
 2

2
N

D
 P

L

E  U N I V E R S I T Y  D R

E  L O E B  S T

E
FAY
S T

N
 1

9
T

H
 A

V
E

E  C H A M P I O N  S T

E  FAY  S T

N
 V

E
T

E
R

A
N

S
 B

L
V

D

N
 2

1
S

T
 A

V
E

E
M A H L

S T

E  C A N O  S T

N
 2

0
T

H
 A

V
E

E  M C I N T Y R E  S T

E  K U H N  S T

E
L O E B

S T
E  L O E B
S T

E  K U H N
S T

E
C A N O
S T

S
 2

5
T

H
 A

V
E

E  M A H L  S T

E  S T U B B S  S T

E  S A M A N O  S T

N
 2

5
T

H
 A

V
E

E  P E T E R  S T

N
 2

2
N

D
 A

V
E

N
 2

4
T

H
 A

V
E

S
2

4
T

H
A

V
E

E L
J A R D I N

C I R

A
C

C
E

S
S

R
A

M
P

A
C

C
E

S
S

 R
A

M
P

E
X

I T
 R

A
M

P
N

 I
-6

9
C

N
 I

-6
9

C

U
N

I V
E

R
S

I T
Y

D
R

E
X

IT

S
 I

-6
9

C

ZONING MAP

APPLICANT OR SUBDIVISION SITEAPPLICANT AND/OR SUBDIVISION:

RAMIRO RESENDEZ / 1123 E CANO ST

CITY LIMITS

APPLICANT OR SUBDIVISION
SITE

ZONING DISTRICTS

AGRICULTURE AND OPEN SPACE

RESIDENTIAL, SUBURBAN

RESIDENTIAL, PRIMARY

RESIDENTIAL, MULTIFAMILY AND
URBAN

RESIDENTIAL, MANUFACTURED
HOME

URBAN UNIVERSITY

DOWNTOWN

COMMERCIAL, NEIGHBORHOOD

COMMERCIAL, GENERAL

INDUSTRIAL, LIGHT

INDUSTRIAL, GENERAL

1 in = 400 ft

®



3

4

1211

9

8

8

10

12

5

9

23

2 3 4 5 61

16

7
2345

891011

3 4 5 6

1720 12 1217

89

2 3 5

2
3
4
5

10

24
25
26

7

91011

0

2 3 4 5

5 6

11
12
13

1

1618

9

7

5

6

8

7

9

1

4

15

11

2

9

13

7 9

1

17

10

1

7

1

8

10

3 5

712

10 10

2

710
12

51

0

2

4 6

4

6

7

9

8

20

22

9

11

5

7

3 5

11

1

79

4 6

7

4

9

1

911

6

16

0

1

7

2 4

81112

1 2

5 6

78

1 2 3 4 3 46

7 8

7

8

131517

511

6

8

15
16
17
18

12

14

19

21

23

8

10

6

8

1 4 6

9128

3

5
6

1

2

5

5

5

3

62 134

1

109 7 12

2442

8712 11

5665

108

7

7

6

8

51

7

161718

1

912 2218

3 2

910 8

1331

42

9

31

118

4 3 2 1

7 9 10 11

1 2

7

15

5665

6 5 4

22 21 20 19 1316 141723 18

5

321

12 11

24

12 109 8 7

5 6

1

19 21 23

9

11

8
10

3

6

79

10 5

10 7

5

810

11 7

9 8 7

65

11

9101112

4321

12

541

12

3456

10 11 12

6

910111212

1211

1 4 6

9

5

10 8

46

10 8 12

2

7 10

6

8

42

8 8

1

6

810 8

35 6 3

4653

8

3 5

10

6

11 9

56

11 9 11

1

9 11

5

7 9

53

7

3

5

711 9

4

246

7

5

5
1

42

9 7
3 6

97

6

7 6

62

1816

2

12
1

0
10

4 1

31

2

8

1

12 10 16 18

4

8

9 8

64

4

7810

4

5

2 1 1 1

1231

12 11 10
5

11

654

7

4 3 2

8 7 13 14

6 5

12

3 1

7

6 5 4

9

8

4

10 8

1

11 911

1

17

7 2

11 9 15 17

3

8

9 7

9 7

2

12 810

9 4

11

7

12 8 2

6543

1

1212 11

345

654

1

12

12 11 7

123

7 7 98 10 12

123

1

10 9

3 4

7

654

42

7 10 10

1246

97

6 5
9 8 7

31

4

2

9

54

2 3 4 5

151413

11

6

78

3

3 23 5

21

6 4

79 810

1

1 6 5

11 8

20

7

5

4

1

12 11 10 9 8 7 7

654

1

8

64

10

2122

5

7

2

5 6

8107

1 3

8

1819

9118

2 4

7

11

14 1315

9

12

7

1 8

1314

74

3 4

2 9

1215

6

6543

3 52

12

891011

1

9711 2016

2 3 4

108712

1

1211 13

65

9 16

1

12 7

6

9

3

0

0

3

0

1

1 1

0

1

7

5 9

121098654321

1

104

654321 7
1

10

A

1 2

1

4 3

6

1 2

11

2

12

0

0

0

6

S
 I

-6
9

C

S
 2

4
T

H
 A

V
E

S
 2

1
S

T
 A

V
E

S
 2

3
R

D
 A

V
E

S
 2

0
T

H
 A

V
E

S
 2

2
N

D
 A

V
E

S
 V

E
T

E
R

A
N

S
 B

L
V

D

S
 1

9
T

H
 A

V
E

N
 2

2
N

D
 P

L

E  U N I V E R S I T Y  D R

E
FAY
S T

E  L O E B  S T

E FAY
S T

N
 1

9
T

H
 A

V
E

E  C H A M P I O N  S T

E S T U B B S
S T

E  FAY  S T

N
 V

E
T

E
R

A
N

S
 B

L
V

D N
 2

1
S

T
 A

V
E

E M A H L
S T

E  C A N O  S T

N
 2

0
T

H
 A

V
E

E
P E T E R

S T

E  M C I N T Y R E  S T

E  K U H N  S T

E
L O E B

S T

A L B O R E S
C T

E L O E B
S T

A L B O R E S
C T

E K U H N
S T

E  C A N O  S T

S
 2

5
T

H
 A

V
E

E  M A H L  S T

E  S T U B B S  S T

E  S A M A N O  S T

N
 2

5
T

H
 A

V
E

E  P E T E R  S T

N
 2

2
N

D
 A

V
E

S F
R

O
N

T
A

G
E

R
D

N
 2

4
T

H
 A

V
E

S
 2

4
T

H
 A

V
E

S
2

6
T

H
A

V
E

E L
J A R D I N
C I R

A
C

C
E

S
S

R
A

M
P

A
C

C
E

S
S

 R
A

M
P

E
X

IT
R

A
M

P
N

 I
-6

9
C

N
 I

-6
9

C

U
N

IV
E

R
S

I T
Y

D
R

E
X

ITS
 I

-6
9

C

MAILOUT AND SITE MAP

APPLICANT OR SUBDIVISION SITEAPPLICANT AND/OR SUBDIVISION:

RAMIRO RESENDEZ / 1123 E CANO ST

CITY LIMITS

APPLICANT OR SUBDIVISION
SITE

300FT NOTIFICATION

1 in = 400 ft

®



dcolina
Rectangle











Zoning Board of Adjustment 
Site Photos for meeting of May 31, 2023 
1123 EAST CANO STREET 





ZONING CASE 
OWNER NOTIFICATION LIST 

 
 
PROPERTY ID: 164957 
SALAZAR RAMIRO F 
NULL 
1101 E CANO ST 
EDINBURG, TX  
LEGAL: EDINBURG TOWNSITE S1/2-LOT 12 & N 1/2-LOT 12 BLK 243 
 
PROPERTY ID: 119206 
EL PATO PROPERTIES LP 
NULL 
1300 EAST TAMARACK 
MCALLEN, TX  
LEGAL: AUSTIN ADDN LOTS 17-18-19 BLK 4 
PROPERTY ID: 119207 
EL PATO PROPERTIES LP 
NULL 
1300 EAST TAMARACK 
MCALLEN, TX  
LEGAL: AUSTIN ADDN LOT 20 BLK 4 
 
PROPERTY ID: 164946 
CANALES ELIDA RAMIREZ LOPEZ 
NULL 
2702 ENCINO COURT 
EDINBURG, TX  
LEGAL: EDINBURG TOWNSITE LOT 1-E1/2  2 & 3-W1/2  BLK 243 
 
PROPERTY ID: 164947 
1116 UNIVERSITY LLC 
NULL 
11626 MEADOW CHASE DR 
NULL 
HOUSTON, TX  
LEGAL: EDINBURG TOWNSITE E25'-LOT 3  ALL LOT 4 W25'-LOT 5 BLK 243 
 
PROPERTY ID: 164948 
MALDONADO PAULA 
NULL 
601 N 8TH AVE 
EDINBURG, TX  
LEGAL: EDINBURG TOWNSITE E 1/2 LOT 5 ALL LOT 6 BLK 243 
 
 
 



ZONING CASE 
OWNER NOTIFICATION LIST 

PROPERTY ID: 164945 
TRUJILLO NORA PEREZ 
NULL 
2607 PRIMROSE AVE APT 1 
NULL 
EDINBURG, TX  
LEGAL: EDINBURG TOWNSITE LOT W 1/2 OF 1 BLK 243 
 
PROPERTY ID: 164942 
GUTIERREZ & CO INC 
NULL 
PO BOX 4243 
EDINBURG, TX  
LEGAL: EDINBURG TOWNSITE LOTS 10  11 & 12 BLK 242 
 
 
PROPERTY ID: 164941 
K & M APPLIANCES LLC 
NULL 
PO BOX 3757 
EDINBURG, TX  
LEGAL: EDINBURG TOWNSITE LOT 9 BLK 242 
 
PROPERTY ID: 119205 
EL PATO PROPERTIES LP 
NULL 
1300 EAST TAMARACK 
MCALLEN, TX  
LEGAL: AUSTIN ADDN LOT 16 BLK 4 
 
PROPERTY ID: 164939 
ACUNA ROBERTO JR & LETICIA A 
NULL 
1506 RUIDOSO 
EDINBURG, TX  
LEGAL: EDINBURG TOWNSITE LOTS 7 & 8 BLK 242 
 
PROPERTY ID: 164940 
LEGAL:  
 
PROPERTY ID: 165234 
RODRIGUEZ BLANCA E 
NULL 
1116 E CANO ST 
EDINBURG, TX  
LEGAL: EDINBURG TOWNSITE LOT 5 BLK 286 



ZONING CASE 
OWNER NOTIFICATION LIST 

 
PROPERTY ID: 165233 
FLORES VIDAL & JULIA A 
NULL 
2624 SOUTHRIDGE DR 
NULL 
EDINBURG, TX  
LEGAL: EDINBURG TOWNSITE LOT 4 BLK 286 
 
PROPERTY ID: 165232 
FLORES VIDAL & JULIA A 
NULL 
2624 SOUTHRIDGE DR 
NULL 
EDINBURG, TX  
LEGAL: EDINBURG TOWNSITE LOTS 1-2-3 BLK 286 
 
 
PROPERTY ID: 183724 
SALINAS AZUCENA 
NULL 
1206 E CANO ST 
EDINBURG, TX  
LEGAL: GROVE PARK LOT 4 BLK 5 
 
 
PROPERTY ID: 183726 
LOPEZ DAVID SALINAS 
NULL 
1321 E CANO ST 
EDINBURG, TX  
LEGAL: GROVE PARK LOT 6 BLK 5 
 
PROPERTY ID: 165239 
GARCIA MANUEL 
NULL 
1117 EAST MAHL 
EDINBURG, TX  
LEGAL: EDINBURG TOWNSITE LOT 10 BLK 286 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



ZONING CASE 
OWNER NOTIFICATION LIST 

PROPERTY ID: 165237 
OCHOA JOSE A & RAQUEL R TRUSTEES OCHOA FAMILY REVOCABLE TRUST 
NULL 
4124 LAKECLIFF DR 
NULL 
HARKER HEIGHTS, TX  
LEGAL: EDINBURG TOWNSITE LOT 8 BLK 286 
 
PROPERTY ID: 183725 
CAVAZOS AURORA 
NULL 
1204 E CANO ST 
EDINBURG, TX  
LEGAL: GROVE PARK LOT 5 BLK 5 
 
PROPERTY ID: 165235 
SALINAS ISIDORO L & FRANCISCA G 
NULL 
1120 E CANO ST 
EDINBURG, TX  
LEGAL: EDINBURG TOWNSITE LOT 6 BLK 286 
 
PROPERTY ID: 165240 
RAMIREZ MANUEL JR & EMMA B 
NULL 
1105 E MAHL ST 
EDINBURG, TX  
LEGAL: EDINBURG TOWNSITE LOT 11 BLK 286 
 
PROPERTY ID: 165238 
RODRIGUEZ JESUS JR 
NULL 
1119 E MAHL ST 
EDINBURG, TX  
LEGAL: EDINBURG TOWNSITE LOT 9 BLK 286 
 
PROPERTY ID: 183718 
LIGA PABLO SEVER & FLOR DEL ROCIO SUAREZ 
1211 E CANO ST 
EDINBURG, TX  
LEGAL: GROVE PARK LOT 16 BLK 4 
 
 
 
 
 



ZONING CASE 
OWNER NOTIFICATION LIST 

PROPERTY ID: 183720 
AGUILAR MARIA G & CORINA PEREZ 
NULL 
3105 S RAUL LONGORIA RD 
EDINBURG, TX  
LEGAL: GROVE PARK LOT 18 BLK 4 
 
PROPERTY ID: 183715 
RODRIGUEZ CESARIO 
NULL 
1123 E CANO ST 
EDINBURG, TX  
LEGAL: GROVE PARK LOT 13 BLK 4 
 
PROPERTY ID: 183716 
OCHOA ANASTACIO JR 
NULL 
1205 E CANO ST 
EDINBURG, TX  
LEGAL: GROVE PARK LOT 14 BLK 4 
 
PROPERTY ID: 183710 
AGUILAR & AGUILAR RENTALS LLC 
NULL 
2321 E SPRAGUE ST 
EDINBURG, TX  
LEGAL: GROVE PARK LOT 1 BLK 4 
 
PROPERTY ID: 183717 
MORALES IMELDA ABUNDIS 
NULL 
1207 E CANO ST 
EDINBURG, TX  
LEGAL: GROVE PARK LOT 15 BLK 4 
 
PROPERTY ID: 183719 
AGUILAR MARIA G 
NULL 
3105 S RAUL LONGORIA RD 
NULL 
EDINBURG, TX  
LEGAL: GROVE PARK LOT 17 BLK 4 
 
 
 
 



ZONING CASE 
OWNER NOTIFICATION LIST 

PROPERTY ID: 164955 
CANALES ELIDA RAMIREZ LOPEZ 
NULL 
2702 ENCINO COURT 
EDINBURG, TX  
LEGAL: EDINBURG TOWNSITE LOT 11 BLK 243 
 
PROPERTY ID: 183714 
MALDONADO PAULA ALONZO 
NULL 
601 N 8TH AVE 
EDINBURG, TX  
LEGAL: GROVE PARK LOT 12 BLK 4 
 
PROPERTY ID: 183713 
MALDONADO ARTURO 
NULL 
1106 E FAY ST 
EDINBURG, TX  
LEGAL: GROVE PARK LOT 11 BLK 4 
 
PROPERTY ID: 183712 
JELUGO PROPERTIES LLC 
NULL 
2115 LOTT ROAD 
DONNA, TX  
LEGAL: GROVE PARK LOT 8-9-10 BLK 4 
 
PROPERTY ID: 183711 
R & L LOZANO LEASING LTD 
NULL 
208 N CAGE BLVD 
PHARR, TX  
LEGAL: GROVE PARK LOTS 2 THRU 7 BLK 4 
 
PROPERTY ID: 183721 
MARTINEZ IRENE & HECTOR OCHOA 
NULL 
1220 E CANO ST 
NULL 
EDINBURG, TX  
LEGAL: GROVE PARK LOT 1 BLK 5 
 
 
 
 



ZONING CASE 
OWNER NOTIFICATION LIST 

 
 
PROPERTY ID: 183722 
OCHOA HECTOR 
NULL 
1220 E CANO 
EDINBURG, TX  
LEGAL: GROVE PARK LOT 2 BLK 5 
 
PROPERTY ID: 183723 
RIVERA RAMON & ERICA 
NULL 
1212 E CANO ST 
EDINBURG, TX  
LEGAL: GROVE PARK LOT 3 BLK 5 
 
PROPERTY ID: 165236 
ALVAREZ DEBORAH 
NULL 
1123 E MAHL ST 
NULL 
EDINBURG, TX  
LEGAL: EDINBURG TOWNSITE LOT 7 BLK 286 
 
PROPERTY ID: 183727 
ROJAS JUAN R MARTINEZ 
NULL 
1201 E MAHL ST 
EDINBURG, TX  
LEGAL: GROVE PARK LOT 7 BLK 5 
 
PROPERTY ID: 183729 
PINA CAPITAL LLC 
116 E VERDIN 
MCALLEN, TX  
LEGAL: GROVE PARK LOT 9 BLK 5 
 
PROPERTY ID: 183728 
LEVRIER ROBERTO JR 
NULL 
18 M N RABB RD 
LA FERIA, TX  
LEGAL: GROVE PARK LOT 8 BLK 5 
 
 
 



ZONING CASE 
OWNER NOTIFICATION LIST 

PROPERTY ID: 183730 
RODRIGUEZ JORGE LUIS DAVILA & NORMA E  CAMPOS 
1217 E MAHL ST 
EDINBURG, TX  
LEGAL: GROVE PARK LOT 10 BLK 5 
 
PROPERTY ID: 164950 
LOPEZ DAVID 
NULL 
1321 E CANO ST 
EDINBURG, TX  
LEGAL: EDINBURG TOWNSITE LOT W 1/2 OF 7 BLK 243 
 
PROPERTY ID: 164953 
MARTIN VILLANUEVA & LUZ BELEN 
NULL 
3528 BUDDY OWENS AVE 
NULL 
MCALLEN, TX  
LEGAL: EDINBURG TOWNSITE LOT 9 BLK 243 
 
PROPERTY ID: 164952 
HERNANDEZ ELVA 
NULL 
1117 E CANO 
EDINBURG, TX  
LEGAL: EDINBURG TOWNSITE LOT 8 BLK 243 
 
PROPERTY ID: 164954 
HERRERA ANDREW 
NULL 
6800 N 14TH LANE 
NULL 
MCALLEN, TX  
LEGAL: EDINBURG TOWNSITE LOT 10 BLK 243 
 
PROPERTY ID: 164951 
LOPEZ FELIX 
1001 E OWASSA RD APT 26 
EDINBURG, TX  
LEGAL: EDINBURG TOWNSITE LOT E 1/2 OF 7 BLK 243 
 
 



  
Variance Request 

 

AMADO ARTEAGA ON BEHALF OF ANDREW ALBERTO ARTEAGA 

Planning & Zoning Staff Report Prepared on: May 24,2023 
ZONING BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT Regular Meeting:  May 31, 2023 

Agenda Item 
Consider Variances to the City’s Unified Development Code, Section 5.207(F), Easements, 
Encroachments and Removal of Encroachments, Lot 34, Sugar Oaks Subdivision, located at 3335 
Nelson Avenue, as requested by Amado Arteaga on behalf of Andrew Alberto Arteaga 
 

Request 
The applicant is requesting a variance to the City’s Unified Development Code (UDC) Section 
5.207(F) as it applies to easement encroachments. The applicant is wanting to construct a patio 
encroaching into a 20-foot utility easement located at the rear of the property.   

Property Location and Vicinity 
The property is located on the west side of Nelson Avenue, approximately 60 ft. south of Red 
River Avenue. The property is zoned Residential, Multi Family and Urban (RM) District. Adjacent 
zoning is Residential, Multi Family and Urban (RM) District to the North, East, and South. A City 
of Edinburg Ditch is located West of this property. Surrounding land uses is Single family 
residential.  

Background and History 
The property is part of the Sugar Oaks Subdivision that was recorded in August 30, 2017.  The 
property is about 7,800 square feet. A building permit for a 10x18 pergola was reviewed and 
approved on April 21, 2021 by City Staff with a building separation of 20 feet from structure to 
property line. Rear yard setback for this location is 20 feet or easement whichever is greater.  The 
applicant is now requesting an additional 5-foot extension of the patio. Subdivision plat indicates 
a 20-foot utility easement.   

Staff mailed notice of this variance request to 38 neighboring property owners. No comments in 
favor or against this request had been received at the time this report was prepared. 

Analysis 
A 20-foot utility easement is indicated on the Subdivision Plat, the first 15-feet of the utility 
easement from west to east is an exclusive easement to Hidalgo County Irrigation District No. 2. 
the additional 5-feet is a blanket utility easement. The applicant is proposing to construct over 
the 5-foot blanket utility easement leaving a 15-foot separation from structure to property line.   

Recommendation 
Staff recommends denial of the variance request. If approved, the applicant will need to comply 
with all other requirements during the permitting process. If approved, $40 fee, payable to the 



AMADO ARTEAGA ON BEHALF OF ANDREW ALBERTO ARTEAGA 
  Page 2 

County of Hidalgo, County Clerk’s Office, for the recording of the ZBA order is also required. A 
location map, aerial map, photo, subdivision plat, site plan, and application from the property 
owner are attached for the Board’s consideration. 

Prepared by: Approved by: 
Rita Lee Guerrero Jaime Acevedo  
Assistant Director of Planning & Zoning Director of Planning & Zoning  
 



Edinburg, TX | Unified Development Code 1 

 

 

 

UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT CODE 
(Ord. No. 2022-4764, 08/09/2022)  

ARTICLE 5 - SUBDIVISION STANDARDS  
 

Division 5.200, Subdivision Design Standards  

Sec. 5.207, Easements  
During development approval, the City may require the granting of a variety of easements on private property or lots. These 
easements may be for any of the following purposes: drainage, utilities, access to public utilities or drainage areas, fire protection, 
pedestrian access, and conservation. The following standards shall apply to easements: 

A. Utility Easement Width and Location. Where required, all lots shall provide utility easements for sewer, water, gas, 
telecommunications, or other public utilities that are necessary or desirable to serve the subdivision. Their width and 
location shall be as follows: 

1. Utility easements shall be a minimum of 10 feet wide. 
2. Utility easements shall be located in street rights-of-way, alleys, and front, side, or rear yards, as determined by the 

City in accordance with the particular plans and layout of the utility or other service providing company. 
3. Easements that fall on shared side or rear lot lines shall be of equal dimensions on both lots involved, unless 

specifically authorized by the City. 
4. Where attached housing types are involved and yards are enclosed or very narrow, easements shall be placed in 

open space areas for maintenance purposes. 
B. Drainage Easements. 

1. Generally. 
a. To the extent possible, existing surface drainage patterns shall be protected by easements or open space. In 

addition, drainage easements shall be placed on lots to convey surface water to storm sewers located on the 
street or to surface drainage channels located in easements or open spaces as topography and grading dictate. 

b. Where a subdivision is traversed by a watercourse, drainageway, natural channel or stream, the applicant 
shall provide an easement or right-of-way with a location that is substantially the limit of such watercourse, plus 
additional width to accommodate future maintenance needs. Such easement or right-of- way shall be a 
minimum of 75 feet from its centerline to the edge of the easement and shall be designed in accordance with 
the Engineering Standards Manual. 

2. Drainage Facilities. Drainage facilities shall be provided and constructed at the expense of the subdivider pursuant 
to the City's drainage policy, master plans, and as specified by the City Engineer. In addition, all drainage facilities 
shall comply with the Hidalgo County master drainage requirements. 

3. Dedication Required. 
a. Dedication of drain ditch easements shall be made in accordance with the following: 

i. Thoroughfare plans; 
ii. Drainage master plans; 
iii. County drainage master plans; and 
iv. Texas Department of Transportation (TxDOT) regulations. 

b. In the event of demonstrated site constraints, the drain ditch shall be reserved on the subdivision plat as a 
drainage easement. The easement shall include provisions that, when necessary, it will be used for roadway 
improvements at no cost to the City and that no improvements shall be constructed within the easement. 

C. Fire Protection Easements. Fire protection access lanes at the front, rear, and side of a building, where required by the 
Fire Marshal, shall be improved with concrete paving at a width of 20 feet, with appropriate turning radii for the City's fire 
protection equipment. 

https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/edinburg-tx-udc-update/doclibrary.aspx?id=387b9593-b53a-45fa-8f36-a57e90534c8c


Edinburg, TX | Unified Development Code 2 

 
 
 

 

 

 
E. Conservation Easements. The City shall require conservation easements to preserve open space and 

protect natural resources. Conservation easements shall exclude other easements that would result in the 
disturbance of the land, provided, however, pedestrian access easements may be permitted. The 
conservation easements shall be in a form approved by the City Attorney. All conservation easements shall 
run in favor of two parties: all lots in the development and the City. 

F. Encroachments and Removal of Encroachments. No permanent encroachment or structures shall be 
allowed to be located within the area of any easement required by this Section. The City shall have the right 
to remove any encroachment, structures, landscaping, or any other improvements placed upon such 
easements. The City may assess the cost of removing an unauthorized improvement from an easement 
against the landowner, including the placing of a lien on the property. 

Effective on: 8/9/2022 

 

UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT CODE 

D. Pedestrian Access Easements. Pedestrian access easements may be required in accordance with Paragraph 
5.202.E.6, Mid-Block Pedestrian Connections. 





















Zoning Board of Adjustment 
Site Photos for meeting of May 31, 2023 

3335 Nelson Avenue







ZONING CASE 
OWNER NOTIFICATION LIST 

 
 
PROPERTY ID: 287735 
GARZA JOSE A & JULIANA 
NULL 
1824 NORA DR 
EDINBURG, TX 78539-6616 
LEGAL: SOUTH SUGAR TERRACE PH 1 LOT 1 BLK C 
 
PROPERTY ID: 287737 
CARBIA JORGE 
NULL 
615 SUGAR RD APT 6 
EDINBURG, TX 78539-5209 
LEGAL: SOUTH SUGAR TERRACE PH 1 LOT 3 BLK C 
 
PROPERTY ID: 287736 
REYES JOSE A G & MARIA D C 
NULL 
1820 NORA DR 
EDINBURG, TX 78539-6616 
LEGAL: SOUTH SUGAR TERRACE PH 1 LOT 2 BLK C 
 
PROPERTY ID: 287683 
GARZA JOSE ANGEL JR & ANNA VICTORIA MUNOZ GARZA 
NULL 
5622 NEEDVILLE 
NULL 
SAN ANTONIO, TX 78233-4493 
LEGAL: SOUTH SUGAR TERRACE PH 1 LOT 12 BLK A 
 
PROPERTY ID: 287682 
MOLINA SENOVIO JR 
NULL 
3319 MONTEVIDEO ST 
NULL 
EDINBURG, TX 78539 
LEGAL: SOUTH SUGAR TERRACE PH 1 LOT 11 BLK A 
 
PROPERTY ID: 716521 
MCCREE FIDEL 
NULL 
3314 MONROE AVE 
EDINBURG, TX 78539-1835 
LEGAL: MADISON PARK PH 1 LOT 27 
 



ZONING CASE 
OWNER NOTIFICATION LIST 

PROPERTY ID: 716517 
RODRIGUEZ ORLANDO & MAYRA IBARRA 
NULL 
3306 MONROE AVE 
EDINBURG, TX 78539-1835 
LEGAL: MADISON PARK PH 1 LOT 23 
 
PROPERTY ID: 716520 
ZARATE TERESA 
NULL 
3312 MONROE AVE 
EDINBURG, TX 78539-1835 
LEGAL: MADISON PARK PH 1 LOT 26 
 
PROPERTY ID: 716525 
RODRIGUEZ GILDARDO & CLAUDINE 
NULL 
3408 MONROE AVE 
NULL 
EDINBURG, TX 78539-1836 
LEGAL: MADISON PARK PH 1 LOT 31 
 
PROPERTY ID: 716524 
LOZANO ORLANDO & ROSA MARIA RODRIGUEZ-LOZANO 
NULL 
3406 MONROE AVE 
EDINBURG, TX 78539-1836 
LEGAL: MADISON PARK PH 1 LOT 30 
 
PROPERTY ID: 583493 
CITY OF EDINBURG 
NULL 
PO BOX 1079 
EDINBURG, TX 78540-1079 
LEGAL: MCCOLL  A. J. E200'-S1021.3' LOT 5 BLK 1 4.69AC GR 4.60AC NET 
 
PROPERTY ID: 716518 
BENAVIDEZ GUADALUPE IV & MARISOL D 
NULL 
PO BOX 4090 
EDINBURG, TX 78540-4090 
LEGAL: MADISON PARK PH 1 LOT 24 & 25 
 
 
 
 



ZONING CASE 
OWNER NOTIFICATION LIST 

PROPERTY ID: 716522 
NINO GERARDO  & LUZ 
NULL 
3402 MONROE AVE 
EDINBURG, TX 78539-1836 
LEGAL: MADISON PARK PH 1 LOT 28 & 29 
 
PROPERTY ID: 1126190 
GARCIA ANIBAL LEAL & ARELY G MONTES 
NULL 
1102 SALTILLO ST 
EDINBURG, TX 78539-5855 
LEGAL: SUGAR OAKS LOT 74 
 
PROPERTY ID: 1126163 
GUERRA MARGARITA & LONNIE ARMSTRONG JR 
NULL 
5111 EL PASEO AVE 
EDINBURG, TX 78542 
LEGAL: SUGAR OAKS LOT 47 
 
PROPERTY ID: 1126164 
SAENZ STEPHANIE NICOLE 
1813 ST CLAIRE AVE 
EDINBURG, TX 78539 
LEGAL: SUGAR OAKS LOT 48 
 
PROPERTY ID: 1126189 
MARTINEZ ANDRES & CLAUDIA D 
NULL 
1816 W RED RIVER AVE 
NULL 
EDINBURG, TX 78539 
LEGAL: SUGAR OAKS LOT 73 
 
PROPERTY ID: 1126188 
MORENO- GARZA ANNETTE 
NULL 
2816 LA MORA LN 
EDINBURG, TX 78541-9489 
LEGAL: SUGAR OAKS LOT 72 
 
 
 
 
 



ZONING CASE 
OWNER NOTIFICATION LIST 

PROPERTY ID: 1126165 
GONZALEZ EFRAIN PEREZ 
NULL 
1707 KAYLA AVE 
EDINBURG, TX 78539-3726 
LEGAL: SUGAR OAKS LOT 49 
 
PROPERTY ID: 1126166 
KIDD ADAM W 
NULL 
1805 SAINT CLAIRE AVE 
EDINBURG, TX 78539-0192 
LEGAL: SUGAR OAKS LOT 50 
 
PROPERTY ID: 1126187 
KIDD ADAM W 
NULL 
1805 SAINT CLAIRE AVE 
EDINBURG, TX 78539-0192 
LEGAL: SUGAR OAKS LOT 71 
 
PROPERTY ID: 1126158 
GARZA MAXIMO A JR & MARIA C MUNIZ-GARZA 
NULL 
1810 SAINT CLAIRE AVE 
EDINBURG, TX 78539-0192 
LEGAL: SUGAR OAKS LOT 42 
 
PROPERTY ID: 1126157 
RIVERA ROBERTO JR & DENYSE Y 
NULL 
1814 ST CLAIRE AVE 
EDINBURG, TX 78539-0192 
LEGAL: SUGAR OAKS LOT 41 
 
PROPERTY ID: 1126156 
ARJONA ANGEL & DAISY J 
NULL 
1818 ST CLAIRE AVE 
EDINBURG, TX 78539-0192 
LEGAL: SUGAR OAKS LOT 40 
 
 
 
 
 



ZONING CASE 
OWNER NOTIFICATION LIST 

PROPERTY ID: 1126155 
CUNHA JOSE & ANA MARQUES 
NULL 
1822 ST CLAIRE AVE 
NULL 
EDINBURG, TX 78539 
LEGAL: SUGAR OAKS LOT 39 
 
PROPERTY ID: 1126154 
CA2 INVESTMENT GROUP L L C 
1314 E WISCONSIN RD 
EDINBURG, TX 78542 
LEGAL: SUGAR OAKS LOT 38 
 
PROPERTY ID: 1126153 
GALVAN SAN MARTIN JR 
NULL 
10603 FM 2812 
NULL 
MONTE ALTO, TX 78538-3517 
LEGAL: SUGAR OAKS LOT 37 
 
PROPERTY ID: 1126152 
VELA ROBERTO JAVIER & MARLA L 
NULL 
3413 NELSON AVE 
EDINBURG, TX 78539-0284 
LEGAL: SUGAR OAKS LOT 36 
 
PROPERTY ID: 1126151 
URIBE MANUEL ALEJANDRO & ARACELY URIBE 
NULL 
3409 NELSON AVE 
NULL 
EDINBURG, TX 78539 
LEGAL: SUGAR OAKS LOT 35 
 
PROPERTY ID: 1126150 
ARTEAGA ANDREW ALBERTO 
3335 NELSON AVE 
EDINBURG, TX 78539 
LEGAL: SUGAR OAKS LOT 34 
 
 
 
 



ZONING CASE 
OWNER NOTIFICATION LIST 

 
PROPERTY ID: 1126149 
AL-HASSAN WALEED 
1817 W RED RIVER RD 
EDINBURG, TX 78539 
LEGAL: SUGAR OAKS LOT 33 
 
PROPERTY ID: 1126148 
CA2 INVESTMENT GROUP L L C 
1314 E WISCONSIN RD 
EDINBURG, TX 78542 
LEGAL: SUGAR OAKS LOT 32 
 
PROPERTY ID: 1126147 
MENDEZ CHRISTOPHER LEE & JEANNETTE VILLA DANAO 
NULL 
1821 RED RIVER AVE 
EDINBURG, TX 78539-0277 
LEGAL: SUGAR OAKS LOT 31 
 
PROPERTY ID: 1126146 
AL-HASSAN WALEED & HALA SHAKIR 
NULL 
1817 RED RIVER AVE 
NULL 
EDINBURG, TX 78539-0277 
LEGAL: SUGAR OAKS LOT 30 
 
PROPERTY ID: 1126145 
LEGAL:  
 
PROPERTY ID: 1126144 
TALUKDAR NEAL K 
1809 RED RIVER AVE 
EDINBURG, TX 78539 
LEGAL: SUGAR OAKS LOT 28 
 
PROPERTY ID: 1126143 
RODRIGUEZ MIGUEL ANGEL JR 
NULL 
1805 RED RIVER AVE 
NULL 
EDINBURG, TX 78539-0277 
LEGAL: SUGAR OAKS LOT 27 
 
 



ZONING CASE 
OWNER NOTIFICATION LIST 

 
 
PROPERTY ID: 1126142 
VILLARREAL CELINA & ABELINO 
NULL 
1801 RED RIVER AVE 
NULL 
EDINBURG, TX 78539 
LEGAL: SUGAR OAKS LOT 26 
 





Variance Request

Planning & Zoning Staff Report Prepared on: May 23,2023

ZONING BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT Regular Meeting:  May 31, 2023 

Agenda Item 
Consider Variance to the City’s Unified Development Code, Section 5.207(F), Easements, 
Encroachments and Removal of Encroachments, Lot 89, Atwood Village Subdivision, located at 
906 North Blair Avenue, as requested by Gerardo Rodriguez on behalf of Albino Garcia Escamilla 

Request 
The applicant is requesting a variance to the City’s Unified Development Code (UDC) 
Section 5.207(F) as it applies to easement encroachments. The applicant constructed a 
multi-family unit encroaching into a 15-foot utility easement.   

Property Location and Vicinity 
The property is located on the east side of North Blair Road, approximately 472 ft. north of West 
Huckleberry Street. The property is zoned Residential, Multi Family and Urban (RM) District. 
Adjacent zoning is Residential, Multi Family and Urban (RM) District in all surrounding areas. 
Surrounding land uses is Multi-family residential and vacant land.  

Background and History 
The property is part of the Atwood Village Subdivision that was recorded in November 21, 2022. 
The property is about 9,600 square feet. A building permit for multi-family units totaling 4,000 
square feet was submitted on January 31, 2023. The building permit was showing a 10-foot 
setback over a 15-foot easement. The permit was reviewed and approved by staff on March 7, 
2023.  Plans submitted by the applicant show an existing 10-foot utility easement in the front of 
the property. Subdivision plat indicates a 15-foot utility easement.   

 Staff mailed notice of this variance request to 2 neighboring property owners. No comments in 
favor or against this request had been received at the time this report was prepared. 

Analysis 
A 15-foot utility easement is indicated on the Subdivision Plat, the first 5-feet of the utility 
easement is an exclusive easement to Sharyland Water Supply the additional 10-feet is a blanket 
utility easement. A 4,000 sq. ft. multi-family building was constructed at a 10-foot separation 
from building to property line.  

Recommendation 
Due to staff error and construction already at the framing stage, staff recommends approval of 
the variance request with the understanding a hold harmless agreement is signed in the process. 
If approved, the applicant will need to comply with all other requirements during the permitting 

GERARDO RODRIGUEZ ON BEHALF OF ALBINO GARCIA ESCAMILLA 



GERARDO RODRIGUEZ ON BEHALF OF ALBINO GARCIA ESCAMILLA 
  Page 2 

process. If approved, $40 fee, payable to the County of Hidalgo, County Clerk’s Office, for the 
recording of the ZBA order is also required. A location map, aerial map, photo, subdivision plat, 
site plan, and application from the property owner are attached for the Board’s consideration. 

Prepared by: Approved by: 
Rita Lee Guerrero Jaime Acevedo  
Assistant Director of Planning & Zoning Director of Planning & Zoning  
 



Edinburg, TX | Unified Development Code 1 

 

 

 

UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT CODE 
(Ord. No. 2022-4764, 08/09/2022)  

ARTICLE 5 - SUBDIVISION STANDARDS  
 

Division 5.200, Subdivision Design Standards  

Sec. 5.207, Easements  
During development approval, the City may require the granting of a variety of easements on private property or lots. These 
easements may be for any of the following purposes: drainage, utilities, access to public utilities or drainage areas, fire protection, 
pedestrian access, and conservation. The following standards shall apply to easements: 

A. Utility Easement Width and Location. Where required, all lots shall provide utility easements for sewer, water, gas, 
telecommunications, or other public utilities that are necessary or desirable to serve the subdivision. Their width and 
location shall be as follows: 

1. Utility easements shall be a minimum of 10 feet wide. 
2. Utility easements shall be located in street rights-of-way, alleys, and front, side, or rear yards, as determined by the 

City in accordance with the particular plans and layout of the utility or other service providing company. 
3. Easements that fall on shared side or rear lot lines shall be of equal dimensions on both lots involved, unless 

specifically authorized by the City. 
4. Where attached housing types are involved and yards are enclosed or very narrow, easements shall be placed in 

open space areas for maintenance purposes. 
B. Drainage Easements. 

1. Generally. 
a. To the extent possible, existing surface drainage patterns shall be protected by easements or open space. In 

addition, drainage easements shall be placed on lots to convey surface water to storm sewers located on the 
street or to surface drainage channels located in easements or open spaces as topography and grading dictate. 

b. Where a subdivision is traversed by a watercourse, drainageway, natural channel or stream, the applicant 
shall provide an easement or right-of-way with a location that is substantially the limit of such watercourse, plus 
additional width to accommodate future maintenance needs. Such easement or right-of- way shall be a 
minimum of 75 feet from its centerline to the edge of the easement and shall be designed in accordance with 
the Engineering Standards Manual. 

2. Drainage Facilities. Drainage facilities shall be provided and constructed at the expense of the subdivider pursuant 
to the City's drainage policy, master plans, and as specified by the City Engineer. In addition, all drainage facilities 
shall comply with the Hidalgo County master drainage requirements. 

3. Dedication Required. 
a. Dedication of drain ditch easements shall be made in accordance with the following: 

i. Thoroughfare plans; 
ii. Drainage master plans; 
iii. County drainage master plans; and 
iv. Texas Department of Transportation (TxDOT) regulations. 

b. In the event of demonstrated site constraints, the drain ditch shall be reserved on the subdivision plat as a 
drainage easement. The easement shall include provisions that, when necessary, it will be used for roadway 
improvements at no cost to the City and that no improvements shall be constructed within the easement. 

C. Fire Protection Easements. Fire protection access lanes at the front, rear, and side of a building, where required by the 
Fire Marshal, shall be improved with concrete paving at a width of 20 feet, with appropriate turning radii for the City's fire 
protection equipment. 

https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/edinburg-tx-udc-update/doclibrary.aspx?id=387b9593-b53a-45fa-8f36-a57e90534c8c


Edinburg, TX | Unified Development Code 2 

 
 
 

 

 

 
E. Conservation Easements. The City shall require conservation easements to preserve open space and 

protect natural resources. Conservation easements shall exclude other easements that would result in the 
disturbance of the land, provided, however, pedestrian access easements may be permitted. The 
conservation easements shall be in a form approved by the City Attorney. All conservation easements shall 
run in favor of two parties: all lots in the development and the City. 

F. Encroachments and Removal of Encroachments. No permanent encroachment or structures shall be 
allowed to be located within the area of any easement required by this Section. The City shall have the right 
to remove any encroachment, structures, landscaping, or any other improvements placed upon such 
easements. The City may assess the cost of removing an unauthorized improvement from an easement 
against the landowner, including the placing of a lien on the property. 

Effective on: 8/9/2022 

 

UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT CODE 

D. Pedestrian Access Easements. Pedestrian access easements may be required in accordance with Paragraph 
5.202.E.6, Mid-Block Pedestrian Connections. 













G.R. LOERA

DESIGN

geraloera@hotmail.com

(956) 570 04 96SITE PLAN

4000 SQFT TOTAL

Lot 89

APT 1.  1092  SQFT. LA.

APT 2.  908  SQFT. LA.

APT 3.  908  SQFT. LA.

APT 4.  1092  SQFT. LA.

A  R  E  A  S

4000 SQ.FT. TOTAL

Edinburg,TX. 

Atwood Village Sbdv.

N. BLAIR AVENUE

N

1 2 3 4 5 6 7

PROPERTY LINE 

P
R
O

P
E
R
T
Y
 
L
I
N

E

PROPERTY LINE 

P
R
O

P
E
R
T
Y
 
L
I
N

E

5
'
 
S
I
D

E
 
S
E
T
B
A
C
K
 

5
'
 
S
I
D

E
 
S
E
T
B
A
C
K
 

2000 SQFT

BLDG. 1

2000 SQFT

BLDG. 2

5' SIDEWALK 5' SIDEWALK

10' E.E.

10' U.E.& S.W.E. / FRONT SETBACK

8

CARPORT LINE

CARPORT LINE

C
A
R
P
O

R
T
 
L
I
N

E

C
A
R
P
O

R
T
 
L
I
N

E

20' ALLEY EST.

2
%

 
(
M

A
X
)
 

G
R
A
D

E

ENCLOSURE

CARPORT = 988 SQFT

10' SETBACK & ALLEY ESMT.

4' SIDEWALK

4' SIDEWALK

CONCRETE

AREA

CONCRETE

AREA

CONCRETE

AREA

CONCRETE

AREA

Aracely Rocha
Ellipse

Fred Farley
Text Box
SetbacksFront - 10 feetRear -  10 feetSide   - 5 feet

ROHERNANDEZ
Text Box
1. Sidewalk must be installed 3-ft back of curb as per subdivision requirements.2. Must drain from rear to front unless specified otherwise by a professional engineer. Can not drain to adjacent properties.-RH



Zoning Board of Adjustment 
Site Photos for meeting of May 31, 2023

906 North Blair







ZONING CASE 
OWNER NOTIFICATION LIST 

 
 
PROPERTY ID: 1468195 
ATWOOD SUBDIVISION LLC 
NULL 
100 E NOLANA AVE STE 130 
NULL 
MCALLEN, TX 78504 
LEGAL: ATWOOD VILLAGE LOT 46 
 
 
PROPERTY ID: 1468196 
ATWOOD SUBDIVISION LLC 
NULL 
100 E NOLANA AVE STE 130 
NULL 
MCALLEN, TX 78504 
LEGAL: ATWOOD VILLAGE LOT 47 
 
PROPERTY ID: 1468182 
ATWOOD SUBDIVISION LLC 
NULL 
100 E NOLANA AVE STE 130 
NULL 
MCALLEN, TX 78504 
LEGAL: ATWOOD VILLAGE LOT 33 
 
PROPERTY ID: 1468187 
ATWOOD SUBDIVISION LLC 
NULL 
100 E NOLANA AVE STE 130 
NULL 
MCALLEN, TX 78504 
LEGAL: ATWOOD VILLAGE LOT 38 
 
PROPERTY ID: 1468183 
ATWOOD SUBDIVISION LLC 
NULL 
100 E NOLANA AVE STE 130 
NULL 
MCALLEN, TX 78504 
LEGAL: ATWOOD VILLAGE LOT 34 
 
 
 
 



ZONING CASE 
OWNER NOTIFICATION LIST 

PROPERTY ID: 1468186 
ATWOOD SUBDIVISION LLC 
NULL 
100 E NOLANA AVE STE 130 
NULL 
MCALLEN, TX 78504 
LEGAL: ATWOOD VILLAGE LOT 37 
 
PROPERTY ID: 1468184 
ATWOOD SUBDIVISION LLC 
NULL 
100 E NOLANA AVE STE 130 
NULL 
MCALLEN, TX 78504 
LEGAL: ATWOOD VILLAGE LOT 35 
 
PROPERTY ID: 1468185 
ATWOOD SUBDIVISION LLC 
NULL 
100 E NOLANA AVE STE 130 
NULL 
MCALLEN, TX 78504 
LEGAL: ATWOOD VILLAGE LOT 36 
 
PROPERTY ID: 1468175 
ATWOOD SUBDIVISION LLC 
NULL 
100 E NOLANA AVE STE 130 
NULL 
MCALLEN, TX 78504 
LEGAL: ATWOOD VILLAGE LOT 26 
 
PROPERTY ID: 1468171 
ATWOOD SUBDIVISION LLC 
NULL 
100 E NOLANA AVE STE 130 
NULL 
MCALLEN, TX 78504 
LEGAL: ATWOOD VILLAGE LOT 22 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



ZONING CASE 
OWNER NOTIFICATION LIST 

PROPERTY ID: 1468174 
ATWOOD SUBDIVISION LLC 
NULL 
100 E NOLANA AVE STE 130 
NULL 
MCALLEN, TX 78504 
LEGAL: ATWOOD VILLAGE LOT 25 
 
PROPERTY ID: 1468172 
ATWOOD SUBDIVISION LLC 
NULL 
100 E NOLANA AVE STE 130 
NULL 
MCALLEN, TX 78504 
LEGAL: ATWOOD VILLAGE LOT 23 
 
PROPERTY ID: 1468173 
ATWOOD SUBDIVISION LLC 
NULL 
100 E NOLANA AVE STE 130 
NULL 
MCALLEN, TX 78504 
LEGAL: ATWOOD VILLAGE LOT 24 
 
PROPERTY ID: 1468223 
ATWOOD SUBDIVISION LLC 
NULL 
100 E NOLANA AVE STE 130 
NULL 
MCALLEN, TX 78504 
LEGAL: ATWOOD VILLAGE LOT 74 
 
PROPERTY ID: 1468222 
ATWOOD SUBDIVISION LLC 
NULL 
100 E NOLANA AVE STE 130 
NULL 
MCALLEN, TX 78504 
LEGAL: ATWOOD VILLAGE LOT 73 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



ZONING CASE 
OWNER NOTIFICATION LIST 

PROPERTY ID: 1468224 
ATWOOD SUBDIVISION LLC 
NULL 
100 E NOLANA AVE STE 130 
NULL 
MCALLEN, TX 78504 
LEGAL: ATWOOD VILLAGE LOT 75 
 
PROPERTY ID: 1468221 
ATWOOD SUBDIVISION LLC 
NULL 
100 E NOLANA AVE STE 130 
NULL 
MCALLEN, TX 78504 
LEGAL: ATWOOD VILLAGE LOT 72 
 
PROPERTY ID: 1468225 
ATWOOD SUBDIVISION LLC 
NULL 
100 E NOLANA AVE STE 130 
NULL 
MCALLEN, TX 78504 
LEGAL: ATWOOD VILLAGE LOT 76 
 
PROPERTY ID: 1468220 
ATWOOD SUBDIVISION LLC 
NULL 
100 E NOLANA AVE STE 130 
NULL 
MCALLEN, TX 78504 
LEGAL: ATWOOD VILLAGE LOT 71 
 
PROPERTY ID: 1468226 
ATWOOD SUBDIVISION LLC 
NULL 
100 E NOLANA AVE STE 130 
NULL 
MCALLEN, TX 78504 
LEGAL: ATWOOD VILLAGE LOT 77 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



ZONING CASE 
OWNER NOTIFICATION LIST 

PROPERTY ID: 1468227 
ATWOOD SUBDIVISION LLC 
NULL 
100 E NOLANA AVE STE 130 
NULL 
MCALLEN, TX 78504 
LEGAL: ATWOOD VILLAGE LOT 78 
 
PROPERTY ID: 1468237 
ATWOOD SUBDIVISION LLC 
NULL 
100 E NOLANA AVE STE 130 
NULL 
MCALLEN, TX 78504 
LEGAL: ATWOOD VILLAGE LOT 88 
 
PROPERTY ID: 1468236 
ATWOOD SUBDIVISION LLC 
NULL 
100 E NOLANA AVE STE 130 
NULL 
MCALLEN, TX 78504 
LEGAL: ATWOOD VILLAGE LOT 87 
 
PROPERTY ID: 1468238 
SHADDAI CONSTRUCTION LLC 
2802 COUNTRY CLB 
MISSION, TX 78572 
LEGAL: ATWOOD VILLAGE LOT 89 
 
PROPERTY ID: 1468235 
ATWOOD SUBDIVISION LLC 
NULL 
100 E NOLANA AVE STE 130 
NULL 
MCALLEN, TX 78504 
LEGAL: ATWOOD VILLAGE LOT 86 
 
PROPERTY ID: 1468239 
SHADDAI CONSTRUCTION LLC 
2802 COUNTRY CLB 
MISSION, TX 78572 
LEGAL: ATWOOD VILLAGE LOT 90 
 
 
 



ZONING CASE 
OWNER NOTIFICATION LIST 

 
 
PROPERTY ID: 1468234 
ATWOOD SUBDIVISION LLC 
NULL 
100 E NOLANA AVE STE 130 
NULL 
MCALLEN, TX 78504 
LEGAL: ATWOOD VILLAGE LOT 85 
 
PROPERTY ID: 1468240 
ATWOOD SUBDIVISION LLC 
NULL 
100 E NOLANA AVE STE 130 
NULL 
MCALLEN, TX 78504 
LEGAL: ATWOOD VILLAGE LOT 91 
 
PROPERTY ID: 1468233 
ATWOOD SUBDIVISION LLC 
NULL 
100 E NOLANA AVE STE 130 
NULL 
MCALLEN, TX 78504 
LEGAL: ATWOOD VILLAGE LOT 84 
 
PROPERTY ID: 1468241 
ATWOOD SUBDIVISION LLC 
NULL 
100 E NOLANA AVE STE 130 
NULL 
MCALLEN, TX 78504 
LEGAL: ATWOOD VILLAGE LOT 92 
 
PROPERTY ID: 1468232 
ATWOOD SUBDIVISION LLC 
NULL 
100 E NOLANA AVE STE 130 
NULL 
MCALLEN, TX 78504 
LEGAL: ATWOOD VILLAGE LOT 83 
 
 
 
 
 



ZONING CASE 
OWNER NOTIFICATION LIST 

 
PROPERTY ID: 1468251 
ATWOOD SUBDIVISION LLC 
NULL 
100 E NOLANA AVE STE 130 
NULL 
MCALLEN, TX 78504 
LEGAL: ATWOOD VILLAGE LOT 102 
 
PROPERTY ID: 1468250 
ATWOOD SUBDIVISION LLC 
NULL 
100 E NOLANA AVE STE 130 
NULL 
MCALLEN, TX 78504 
LEGAL: ATWOOD VILLAGE LOT 101 
 
PROPERTY ID: 1468252 
ATWOOD SUBDIVISION LLC 
NULL 
100 E NOLANA AVE STE 130 
NULL 
MCALLEN, TX 78504 
LEGAL: ATWOOD VILLAGE LOT 103 
 
PROPERTY ID: 1468249 
ATWOOD SUBDIVISION LLC 
NULL 
100 E NOLANA AVE STE 130 
NULL 
MCALLEN, TX 78504 
LEGAL: ATWOOD VILLAGE LOT 100 
 
PROPERTY ID: 1468253 
ATWOOD SUBDIVISION LLC 
NULL 
100 E NOLANA AVE STE 130 
NULL 
MCALLEN, TX 78504 
LEGAL: ATWOOD VILLAGE LOT 104 
 
 
 
 
 
 



ZONING CASE 
OWNER NOTIFICATION LIST 

PROPERTY ID: 1468248 
ATWOOD SUBDIVISION LLC 
NULL 
100 E NOLANA AVE STE 130 
NULL 
MCALLEN, TX 78504 
LEGAL: ATWOOD VILLAGE LOT 99 
 
PROPERTY ID: 1468254 
ATWOOD SUBDIVISION LLC 
NULL 
100 E NOLANA AVE STE 130 
NULL 
MCALLEN, TX 78504 
LEGAL: ATWOOD VILLAGE LOT 105 
 
PROPERTY ID: 1468247 
ATWOOD SUBDIVISION LLC 
NULL 
100 E NOLANA AVE STE 130 
NULL 
MCALLEN, TX 78504 
LEGAL: ATWOOD VILLAGE LOT 98 
 
PROPERTY ID: 1468255 
ATWOOD SUBDIVISION LLC 
NULL 
100 E NOLANA AVE STE 130 
NULL 
MCALLEN, TX 78504 
LEGAL: ATWOOD VILLAGE LOT 106 
 
PROPERTY ID: 1468246 
ATWOOD SUBDIVISION LLC 
NULL 
100 E NOLANA AVE STE 130 
NULL 
MCALLEN, TX 78504 
LEGAL: ATWOOD VILLAGE LOT 97 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



ZONING CASE 
OWNER NOTIFICATION LIST 

PROPERTY ID: 1468228 
ATWOOD SUBDIVISION LLC 
NULL 
100 E NOLANA AVE STE 130 
NULL 
MCALLEN, TX 78504 
LEGAL: ATWOOD VILLAGE LOT 79 
 
PROPERTY ID: 1468242 
ATWOOD SUBDIVISION LLC 
NULL 
100 E NOLANA AVE STE 130 
NULL 
MCALLEN, TX 78504 
LEGAL: ATWOOD VILLAGE LOT 93 
 
PROPERTY ID: 1468231 
ATWOOD SUBDIVISION LLC 
NULL 
100 E NOLANA AVE STE 130 
NULL 
MCALLEN, TX 78504 
LEGAL: ATWOOD VILLAGE LOT 82 
 
PROPERTY ID: 1468256 
ATWOOD SUBDIVISION LLC 
NULL 
100 E NOLANA AVE STE 130 
NULL 
MCALLEN, TX 78504 
LEGAL: ATWOOD VILLAGE LOT 107 
 
PROPERTY ID: 1468245 
ATWOOD SUBDIVISION LLC 
NULL 
100 E NOLANA AVE STE 130 
NULL 
MCALLEN, TX 78504 
LEGAL: ATWOOD VILLAGE LOT 96 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



ZONING CASE 
OWNER NOTIFICATION LIST 

PROPERTY ID: 1468149 
ATWOOD SUBDIVISION LLC 
NULL 
100 E NOLANA AVE STE 130 
NULL 
MCALLEN, TX 78504 
LEGAL: ATWOOD VILLAGE 7.76ACS FOR PRIVATE STREETS 
 



Zoning Board of Adjustment 
Site Photos for meeting of May 31, 2023
Lot 12 Bel Air Estates Subdivision 
2507 North Vineyard



  
Variance Request 

 

RENE BARRERA, P.E. ON BEHALF OF DGV, L.P. – DR. PARUL DESAI, MEMBER 

Planning & Zoning Staff Report Prepared on: May 24,2023 
ZONING BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT Regular Meeting:  May 31, 2023 

Agenda Item 
Consider Variance to the City’s Unified Development Code, Section 3.102(A)(1), General 
Standards, Building Separation, Lot 12 & 16, Bel-Air Estates Subdivision, located at 2507 North 
Vineyard Avenue and 2523 North Vineyard Avenue, as requested by Rene Barrera, P.E. on behalf 
of DGV, L.P. – Dr. Parul Desai, Member  
 

Request 
The applicant is requesting a variance to the City’s Unified Development Code, Section 
3.102(A)(1), General Standards as it applies to building separation. The applicant is wanted to 
construct a multi-family unit with 5-foot building separation as oppose to the 10-foot 
requirement as per the Unified Development Code.    

Property Location and Vicinity 
The properties are located at the ends of the cul-de-sac of West Rutherford Avenue and West St. 
Helena Avenue. The property is zoned Residential, Multi Family and Urban (RM) District. Adjacent 
zoning is Residential, Multi Family and Urban (RM) District to the East and Agriculture (AG) 
District to the North, South and West. Surrounding land uses is Multi-family residential and 
vacant land.  

Background and History 
The property is part of the Bel- Air Estates Subdivision that was recorded on May 14, 2021.  Each 
property is about 19,000 square feet. A building permit for multi-family units totaling 6,696 
square feet was submitted to staff for review. The site plan indicates a 5-foot building separation 
on units between C and F.  

Staff mailed notice of this variance request to 5 neighboring property owners. No comments in 
favor or against this request had been received at the time this report was prepared. 

Analysis 
A 5- foot separation between buildings C and F is proposed. City of Edinburg Unified Development 
Code requires a 10-foot separation of walls of buildings that are located on a single lot, if not 
party walls. It also states Fire Code standards shall be abided by.  

Recommendation 
Staff recommends denial of the variance request. If approved, the applicant will need to comply 
with all other requirements during the permitting process including building and fire code 
requirements. If approved the applicant will need to pay a $40 fee payable to the County of 



RENE BARRERA, P.E. ON BEHALF OF DGV, L.P. – DR. PARUL DESAI, MEMBER 
  Page 2 

Hidalgo, County Clerk’s Office, for the recording of the ZBA order is also required. A location map, 
aerial map, photo, subdivision plat, site plan, and application from the property owner are 
attached for the Board’s consideration. 

Prepared by: Approved by: 
Rita Lee Guerrero Jaime Acevedo  
Assistant Director of Planning & Zoning Director of Planning & Zoning  
 



 
 
 

RENE BARRERA, P.E. ON BEHALF OF DGV, L.P. – DR. PARUL DESAI, MEMBER 
  Page 1 

 
 
UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT CODE 

 

(Ord. No. 2022-4764, 08/09/2022) 
 

ARTICLE 3 - LOT AND DESIGN STANDARDS  
 

Division 3.100, Standards for Rural and Residential Districts  

Sec. 3.102, Standards for Rural and Residential Development  
A. General Standards. The standards below apply to new residential development in Edinburg: 

1. Building Separation. The walls of buildings that are located on a single lot, if not party walls, shall be no less than 10 feet 
apart, and; 

2. Fire Code. Shall abide by the standards in the International Fire Code. 

 





















Zoning Board of Adjustment 
Site Photos for meeting of May 31, 2023 

Lot 16, 2523 North Vineyard







ZONING CASE 
OWNER NOTIFICATION LIST 

 
 
PROPERTY ID: 295839 
AZTECA MILLING LP 
NULL 
5601 EXECUTIVE DR SUITE 650 
IRVING, TX 75038-2508 
LEGAL: TEX-MEX SURVEY ALL 40ACS OF LOT 13 BLK 244 34.38AC NET 
 
PROPERTY ID: 295842 
PAULMEX INTERNATIONAL INC 
NULL 
PO BOX 2479 
EDINBURG, TX 78540-2479 
LEGAL: TEX-MEX SURVEY LOT 14-W10AC/S20AC BLK 244 9.77 AC NET 
 
PROPERTY ID: 295527 
AZTECA MILLING LP 
NULL 
5601 EXECUTIVE DR SUITE 650 
IRVING, TX 75038-2508 
LEGAL: TEX-MEX SURVEY ALL LT 4;N10.31AC-LT 5;W16.32AC-IRR TR LT 6 BLK 
241 & ALL LT 12 BLK 244 102.35AC GR 94.75AC NET 
 
PROPERTY ID: 1372564 
DGV LP 
NULL 
1220 NORTHGATE LN 
MCALLEN, TX 78504-9556 
LEGAL: BEL-AIR ESTATES LOT 10 
 
PROPERTY ID: 1372563 
DGV LP 
NULL 
1220 NORTHGATE LN 
MCALLEN, TX 78504-9556 
LEGAL: BEL-AIR ESTATES LOT 9 
 
PROPERTY ID: 1372562 
DGV LP 
NULL 
1220 NORTHGATE LN 
MCALLEN, TX 78504-9556 
LEGAL: BEL-AIR ESTATES LOT 8 
 
 



ZONING CASE 
OWNER NOTIFICATION LIST 

 
 
PROPERTY ID: 1372572 
DGV LP 
NULL 
1220 NORTHGATE LN 
MCALLEN, TX 78504-9556 
LEGAL: BEL-AIR ESTATES LOT 18 
 
PROPERTY ID: 1372573 
DGV LP 
NULL 
1220 NORTHGATE LN 
MCALLEN, TX 78504-9556 
LEGAL: BEL-AIR ESTATES LOT 19 
 
PROPERTY ID: 1372574 
DGV LP 
NULL 
1220 NORTHGATE LN 
MCALLEN, TX 78504-9556 
LEGAL: BEL-AIR ESTATES LOT 20 
 
PROPERTY ID: 1372568 
DGV LP 
NULL 
1220 NORTHGATE LN 
MCALLEN, TX 78504-9556 
LEGAL: BEL-AIR ESTATES LOT 14 
 
PROPERTY ID: 1372589 
DGV LP 
NULL 
1220 NORTHGATE LN 
MCALLEN, TX 78504-9556 
LEGAL: BEL-AIR ESTATES LOT 35 
 
PROPERTY ID: 1372588 
DGV LP 
NULL 
1220 NORTHGATE LN 
MCALLEN, TX 78504-9556 
LEGAL: BEL-AIR ESTATES LOT 34 
 
 
 



ZONING CASE 
OWNER NOTIFICATION LIST 

 
PROPERTY ID: 1372587 
DGV LP 
NULL 
1220 NORTHGATE LN 
MCALLEN, TX 78504-9556 
LEGAL: BEL-AIR ESTATES LOT 33 
 
PROPERTY ID: 1372590 
RONAK LLC 
NULL 
2121 E GRIFFIN PKWY STE 12 
MISSION, TX 78572-3072 
LEGAL: BEL-AIR ESTATES LOT 36 
 
PROPERTY ID: 1372591 
DGV LP 
NULL 
1220 NORTHGATE LN 
MCALLEN, TX 78504-9556 
LEGAL: BEL-AIR ESTATES LOT 37 
 
PROPERTY ID: 1372592 
RONAK LLC 
NULL 
2121 E GRIFFIN PKWY STE 12 
MISSION, TX 78572-3072 
LEGAL: BEL-AIR ESTATES LOT 38 
 
PROPERTY ID: 1372565 
DGV LP 
NULL 
1220 NORTHGATE LN 
MCALLEN, TX 78504-9556 
LEGAL: BEL-AIR ESTATES LOT 11 
 
PROPERTY ID: 1372566 
DGV LP 
NULL 
1220 NORTHGATE LN 
MCALLEN, TX 78504-9556 
LEGAL: BEL-AIR ESTATES LOT 12 
 
 
 
 



ZONING CASE 
OWNER NOTIFICATION LIST 

PROPERTY ID: 1372567 
DGV LP 
NULL 
1220 NORTHGATE LN 
MCALLEN, TX 78504-9556 
LEGAL: BEL-AIR ESTATES LOT 13 
 
PROPERTY ID: 1372569 
DGV LP 
NULL 
1220 NORTHGATE LN 
MCALLEN, TX 78504-9556 
LEGAL: BEL-AIR ESTATES LOT 15 
 
PROPERTY ID: 1372570 
DGV LP 
NULL 
1220 NORTHGATE LN 
MCALLEN, TX 78504-9556 
LEGAL: BEL-AIR ESTATES LOT 16 
 
PROPERTY ID: 1372571 
DGV LP 
NULL 
1220 NORTHGATE LN 
MCALLEN, TX 78504-9556 
LEGAL: BEL-AIR ESTATES LOT 17 
 
PROPERTY ID: 1372551 
DGV LP 
NULL 
1220 NORTHGATE LN 
MCALLEN, TX 78504-9556 
LEGAL: BEL-AIR ESTATES 4.00AC FOR PRIVATE STREETS 
 
PROPERTY ID: 295835 
LEADING MEDIA GROUP CORP 
NULL 
5633 RICHMOND AVE 
NULL 
HOUSTON, TX 77057-6345 
LEGAL: TEX-MEX SURVEY LOT 11-N120'-W515.8'-E540.8' & E700'- W745'- N1270' 
LOT 11 BLK 244 EXC E100.8'- S270' 21.21AC GR 21.07AC NET 
 
 
 





  
Variance Request 

 

LETISIA CABALLERO 

 Planning & Zoning Staff Report Prepared on: May 25,2023 
ZONING BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT Regular Meeting:  May 31, 2023 

Agenda Item 
Consider Variances to the City’s Unified Development Code, Section 5.207(F), Easements, 
Encroachments and Removal of Encroachments and Section 7.102(D)(2); Nonconformities; 
General Provisions; Alteration, Enlargement, or Abandonment; Nonconforming Uses, Lot 60, 
Ebony Terrace No. 2 Unit C Subdivision, Located at 1207 Jo Ann Court, as requested by Letisia 
Caballero 
 

Request 
The applicant is requesting a variance to the City’s Unified Development Code, Section 7.102 
(D)(2) as it applies to Easements and encroachments. The applicant has constructed an outdoor 
restroom and concrete pad over an easement. Survey submitted indicated there is a 10-foot 
easement located on the northwest side of the property.  

Property Location and Vicinity 
The property is located at the end of the cul-de-sac of Jo Ann Court and is zoned Residential 
Primary (RP) District. Adjacent zoning is Residential Primary (RP) District in all directions. 
Surrounding land uses is Single Family Residential Uses.   

Background and History 
The property is part of the Ebony Terrace 2 Unit C Subdivision that was recorded in May of 1975.  
The property is about 12,000 square feet. The applicant mentioned that a previous contractor 
had started the construction on the structure and was under the impression a building permit 
was obtained. It was then when a new contractor was hired and a building permit for an 
accessory structure was formally submitted on March 31, 2023. After review from the staff it was 
indicated the accessory structure had been built over the 10-foot utility easement located on the 
northwest side of the property.   

 Staff mailed notice of this variance request to 35 neighboring property owners. No comments in 
favor or against this request had been received at the time this report was prepared. 

Analysis 
A 10-foot utility easement is located on the northwest side of the property. An outdoor patio 
area is located in the area and the applicant is wanting to add an outdoor restroom and concrete 
pad to the structure thus making it non-compliant. The structure was initially built without a 
permit and is wanting to come to compliance.   

 



LETISIA CABALLERO 
 
  Page 2 

Recommendation 
Staff recommends denial of the variance request If approved, the applicant will need to comply 
with all other requirements during the permitting process such as building and fire codes. If 
approved, staff recommends a hold harmless agreement be signed as well as  a $40 fee payable 
to the County of Hidalgo, County Clerk’s Office, for the recording of the ZBA order is also required. 
A location map, aerial map, photo, subdivision plat, site plan, and application from the property 
owner are attached for the Board’s consideration. 

Prepared by: Approved by: 
Rita Lee Guerrero Jaime Acevedo  
Assistant Director of Planning & Zoning Director of Planning & Zoning  
 



Edinburg, TX | Unified Development Code 1 

 

 
 

UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT CODE 
(Ord. No. 2022-4764, 08/09/2022)  

ARTICLE 5 - SUBDIVISION STANDARDS  
 

Division 5.200, Subdivision Design Standards  

Sec. 5.207, Easements  
During development approval, the City may require the granting of a variety of easements on private property or lots. These 
easements may be for any of the following purposes: drainage, utilities, access to public utilities or drainage areas, fire protection, 
pedestrian access, and conservation. The following standards shall apply to easements: 

A. Utility Easement Width and Location. Where required, all lots shall provide utility easements for sewer, water, gas, 
telecommunications, or other public utilities that are necessary or desirable to serve the subdivision. Their width and 
location shall be as follows: 

1. Utility easements shall be a minimum of 10 feet wide. 
2. Utility easements shall be located in street rights-of-way, alleys, and front, side, or rear yards, as determined by the 

City in accordance with the particular plans and layout of the utility or other service providing company. 
3. Easements that fall on shared side or rear lot lines shall be of equal dimensions on both lots involved, unless 

specifically authorized by the City. 
4. Where attached housing types are involved and yards are enclosed or very narrow, easements shall be placed in 

open space areas for maintenance purposes. 
B. Drainage Easements. 

1. Generally. 
a. To the extent possible, existing surface drainage patterns shall be protected by easements or open space. In 

addition, drainage easements shall be placed on lots to convey surface water to storm sewers located on the 
street or to surface drainage channels located in easements or open spaces as topography and grading dictate. 

b. Where a subdivision is traversed by a watercourse, drainageway, natural channel or stream, the applicant 
shall provide an easement or right-of-way with a location that is substantially the limit of such watercourse, plus 
additional width to accommodate future maintenance needs. Such easement or right-of- way shall be a 
minimum of 75 feet from its centerline to the edge of the easement and shall be designed in accordance with 
the Engineering Standards Manual. 

2. Drainage Facilities. Drainage facilities shall be provided and constructed at the expense of the subdivider pursuant 
to the City's drainage policy, master plans, and as specified by the City Engineer. In addition, all drainage facilities 
shall comply with the Hidalgo County master drainage requirements. 

3. Dedication Required. 
a. Dedication of drain ditch easements shall be made in accordance with the following: 

i. Thoroughfare plans; 
ii. Drainage master plans; 
iii. County drainage master plans; and 
iv. Texas Department of Transportation (TxDOT) regulations. 

b. In the event of demonstrated site constraints, the drain ditch shall be reserved on the subdivision plat as a 
drainage easement. The easement shall include provisions that, when necessary, it will be used for roadway 
improvements at no cost to the City and that no improvements shall be constructed within the easement. 

C. Fire Protection Easements. Fire protection access lanes at the front, rear, and side of a building, where required by the 
Fire Marshal, shall be improved with concrete paving at a width of 20 feet, with appropriate turning radii for the City's fire 
protection equipment. 

https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/edinburg-tx-udc-update/doclibrary.aspx?id=387b9593-b53a-45fa-8f36-a57e90534c8c


Edinburg, TX | Unified Development Code 1 

 
 
 
 

 

 

 
E. Conservation Easements. The City shall require conservation easements to preserve open space and protect natural resources. 

Conservation easements shall exclude other easements that would result in the disturbance of the land, provided, however, 
pedestrian access easements may be permitted. The conservation easements shall be in a form approved by the City Attorney. 
All conservation easements shall run in favor of two parties: all lots in the development and the City. 

F. Encroachments and Removal of Encroachments. No permanent encroachment or structures shall be allowed to be located 
within the area of any easement required by this Section. The City shall have the right to remove any encroachment, structures, 
landscaping, or any other improvements placed upon such easements. The City may assess the cost of removing an unauthorized 
improvement from an easement against the landowner, including the placing of a lien on the property. 

Effective on: 8/9/2022 

 

 

UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT CODE 

D. Pedestrian Access Easements. Pedestrian access easements may be required in accordance with Paragraph 
5.202.E.6, Mid-Block Pedestrian Connections. 

















Zoning Board of Adjustment 
Site Photos for meeting of May 31, 2023
1207 JoAnn Court







ZONING CASE 
OWNER NOTIFICATION LIST 

 
 
PROPERTY ID: 163241 
COOK RACHEL L 
NULL 
1622 ANN ST 
EDINBURG, TX 78539-6002 
LEGAL: EBONY TERRACE NO. 2 LOT 4 
 
PROPERTY ID: 163242 
SANDOVAL MARIA SOCORRO 
NULL 
1708 ANN ST 
EDINBURG, TX 78539-6004 
LEGAL: EBONY TERRACE NO. 2 LOT 5 
 
PROPERTY ID: 163293 
PUMAREJO RICARDO & IRENE 
NULL 
1203 CHRIS CIR 
NULL 
EDINBURG, TX 78539-6015 
LEGAL: EBONY TERRACE NO. 2 UT C LOT 55 
 
PROPERTY ID: 163291 
CUELLAR MARTIN & SYLVIA 
NULL 
1207 CHRIS CIR 
EDINBURG, TX 78539-6015 
LEGAL: EBONY TERRACE NO. 2 UT C LOT 53 
 
PROPERTY ID: 163240 
NEELEY PHILIP B & CYNTHIA L 
NULL 
1620 ANN ST 
EDINBURG, TX 78539-6002 
LEGAL: EBONY TERRACE NO. 2 LOT 3 
 
PROPERTY ID: 163239 
SINDER DAVID & MIRJAM K 
NULL 
1616 ANN ST 
EDINBURG, TX 78539-6002 
LEGAL: EBONY TERRACE NO. 2 LOT 2 
 
 



ZONING CASE 
OWNER NOTIFICATION LIST 

PROPERTY ID: 163292 
VARGAS EDUARDO 
NULL 
1205 CHRIS CIR 
EDINBURG, TX 78539-6015 
LEGAL: EBONY TERRACE NO. 2 UT C LOT 54 
 
PROPERTY ID: 163310 
ARREDONDO MANUEL & MAGDALENA 
NULL 
1235 CHRIS CIR 
EDINBURG, TX 78539-6015 
LEGAL: EBONY TERRACE NO. 2 UT C LOT 72 
 
PROPERTY ID: 163254 
ENRIQUEZ ELISANDRO III 
NULL 
1721 ANN ST 
EDINBURG, TX 78539-6003 
LEGAL: EBONY TERRACE NO. 2 LOT 17 
 
PROPERTY ID: 163255 
GARZA FRANCISCO X & HILDA A 
NULL 
1719 ANN ST 
EDINBURG, TX 78539-6003 
LEGAL: EBONY TERRACE NO. 2 LOT 18 
 
PROPERTY ID: 163256 
MENDEZ PAULINO & ELIZABETH C MARTINEZ 
NULL 
1715 ANN ST 
EDINBURG, TX 78539-6003 
LEGAL: EBONY TERRACE NO. 2 LOT 19 
 
PROPERTY ID: 163290 
HODGE JOHN P 
NULL 
2204 ASH CIRCLE 
EDINBURG, TX 78539-5928 
LEGAL: EBONY TERRACE NO. 2 UT C LOT 52 
 
 
 
 
 



ZONING CASE 
OWNER NOTIFICATION LIST 

PROPERTY ID: 163296 
RODRIGUEZ MONETTE MARGOT G 
NULL 
1208 CHRIS CIRCLE 
NULL 
EDINBURG, TX 78539 
LEGAL: EBONY TERRACE NO. 2 UT C LOT 58 EXC E5' 
 
PROPERTY ID: 163286 
CORDONIER IRMA G & RACHEL L TORRES CO TRUSTEES 
IRMA G CORDONIER LVNG TRUST 
1503 MCKEE DR 
EDINBURG, TX 78539 
LEGAL: EBONY TERRACE NO. 2 UT C LOT 48 
 
PROPERTY ID: 163260 
MEREDITH MAURY 
NULL 
1601 ANN ST 
NULL 
EDINBURG, TX 78539 
LEGAL: EBONY TERRACE NO. 2 LOT 23 
 
PROPERTY ID: 163294 
LOPEZ SANTOS JR & ESPERANZA 
NULL 
1204 CHRIS CIR 
EDINBURG, TX 78539-6016 
LEGAL: EBONY TERRACE NO. 2 UT C LOT 56 
 
PROPERTY ID: 163298 
CABALLERO ARMANDO 
LETISIA MORENO 
1207 JOANN ST 
EDINBURG, TX 78539-6017 
LEGAL: EBONY TERRACE NO. 2 UT C LOT 60 & E5' LOT 58 
 
 
PROPERTY ID: 163307 
ARREDONDO NORA N & PABLO 
NULL 
1229 CHRIS CIR 
EDINBURG, TX 78539-6015 
LEGAL: EBONY TERRACE NO. 2 UT C LOT 69 
 
 



ZONING CASE 
OWNER NOTIFICATION LIST 

PROPERTY ID: 163258 
LUNA OMAR & MARY ALICE 
NULL 
25815 COPPERAS LN 
NULL 
SAN ANTONIO, TX 78260-2464 
LEGAL: EBONY TERRACE NO. 2 LOT 21 
 
PROPERTY ID: 163297 
MAYES ROBERT VALE 
NULL 
1210 CHRIS CIR 
EDINBURG, TX 78539-6016 
LEGAL: EBONY TERRACE NO. 2 UT C LOT 59 
 
PROPERTY ID: 163299 
GARCIA REBECCA 
NULL 
1203 JOANN ST 
EDINBURG, TX 78539-6017 
LEGAL: EBONY TERRACE NO. 2 UT C LOT 61 
 
PROPERTY ID: 163304 
MORIN MANUEL & MARIA G 
NULL 
1214 JOANN ST 
EDINBURG, TX 78539-6017 
LEGAL: EBONY TERRACE NO. 2 UT C LOT 66 
 
PROPERTY ID: 163306 
GUZMAN JOSE O & HILDA Z 
NULL 
1227 CHRIS CIR 
EDINBURG, TX 78539-6015 
LEGAL: EBONY TERRACE NO. 2 UT C LOT 68 
 
PROPERTY ID: 163309 
ZUNIGA BALDEMAR 
HERMELINDA ZUNIGA H TRUST 
1233 CHRIS CIR 
EDINBURG, TX 78539-6015 
LEGAL: EBONY TERRACE NO. 2 UT C LOT 71 
 
 
 
 



ZONING CASE 
OWNER NOTIFICATION LIST 

PROPERTY ID: 163257 
PENA MARITZA E & MARIA F SALDANA 
NULL 
1701 ANN ST 
EDINBURG, TX 78539-6003 
LEGAL: EBONY TERRACE NO. 2 LOT 20 
 
PROPERTY ID: 163259 
GUERRA FEDERICO & SYLVIA 
NULL 
1615 ANN ST 
EDINBURG, TX 78539-6068 
LEGAL: EBONY TERRACE NO. 2 LOT 22 
 
PROPERTY ID: 163308 
SHELLER STEVEN DANIEL 
NULL 
1231 CHRIS CIR 
EDINBURG, TX 78539-6015 
LEGAL: EBONY TERRACE NO. 2 UT C LOT 70 
 
PROPERTY ID: 163287 
DE LA ROSA RAUL INES JR ETAL 
1817 ANN ST 
EDINBURG, TX 78539 
LEGAL: EBONY TERRACE NO. 2 UT C LOT 49 
 
PROPERTY ID: 163289 
ZUNIGA JUAN ANGEL JR 
3312 N CHRISTOPHER LN 
EDINBURG, TX 78542 
LEGAL: EBONY TERRACE NO. 2 UT C LOT 51 
 
PROPERTY ID: 163295 
TREVINO JUAN LONGINO 
NULL 
1206 CHRIS CIR 
EDINBURG, TX 78539-6016 
LEGAL: EBONY TERRACE NO. 2 UT C LOT 57 
 
PROPERTY ID: 163300 
CANO IRENE & DAVID 
NULL 
105 WILLOWBEND DR 
PORT LAVACA, TX 77979-2261 
LEGAL: EBONY TERRACE NO. 2 UT C LOT 62 



ZONING CASE 
OWNER NOTIFICATION LIST 

PROPERTY ID: 163301 
TORRES CARLOS & ESPERANZA L 
NULL 
1206 JOANN ST 
EDINBURG, TX 78539-6017 
LEGAL: EBONY TERRACE NO. 2 UT C LOT 63 
 
PROPERTY ID: 163302 
GRAHAM CYNTHIA YBARRA 
NULL 
1208 JOANN ST 
NULL 
EDINBURG, TX 78539-0617 
LEGAL: EBONY TERRACE NO. 2 UT C LOT 64 
 
PROPERTY ID: 163303 
MAYO RODNEY D & CRYSTAL G MUELLER 
NULL 
1210 JOANN CT 
NULL 
EDINBURG, TX 78539 
LEGAL: EBONY TERRACE NO. 2 UT C LOT 65 
 
PROPERTY ID: 163288 
HAUSENFLUCK & MARY E 
NULL 
4505 N 4TH ST 
MCALLEN, TX 78504-2939 
LEGAL: EBONY TERRACE NO. 2 UT C LOT 50 
 



0
1

/2
5

/2
3

0
2

/2
2

/2
3

0
3

/2
9

/2
3

0
4

/2
6

/2
3

Ponciano Longoria - Vice Chair P P P P

Marc Moran - Chairperson P P A P

Michael Cantu - Regular A P P P

Ruben Ruiz- Regular P P P

Eliseo Garza Jr - Regular P P

Diane Teter - Alternate P P A P

Gregory A. Vasquez- Alternate P P P P

Marc A. Gonzalez- Alternate P P P P

Vacant

2023 ATTENDANCE RECORD                                                                                                      

ZONING BOARD OF ADJUSTMENTS MEETINGS


	Zoning Board of Adjustment Regular Meeting 
	 Consider Approval of the minutes for the April 26, 2023 Regular Meeting
	 Consider Variances to the City's Unified Development Code, Section 3.102(C)(1), Lot and Design Standards, Single-Family Detached Lot and Building Standards, Lot Area, Lot Width, and Setbacks, the east half of Lot 7, Block 243, Original Townsite of Edinburg, located at 1123 East Cano Street, as requested by Ramiro A. Resendez
	 Report
	 Development Map
	 Aerial
	 Zoning
	 Site
	 Plat
	 Survey
	 Site Plan
	 Photo
	 Request
	 Owner Notification List

	 Consider Variances to the City's Unified Development Code, Section 5.207(F), Easements, Encroachments and Removal of Encroachments, Lot 34, Sugar Oaks Subdivision, located at 3335 Nelson Avenue, as requested by Amado Arteaga on behalf of Andrew Alberto Arteaga
	 Report
	 Development Map
	 Aerial
	 Zoning
	 Site
	 Plat
	 Plans
	 Photo
	 Application
	 Owner Notification List

	 Consider Variances to the City's Unified Development Code, Section 5.207(F), Easements, Encroachments and Removal of Encroachments, Lot 89, Atwood Village Subdivision, located at 906 North Blair Avenue, as requested by Gerardo Rodriguez on behalf of Albino Garcia Escamilla
	 Report
	 Development Map
	 Aerial
	 Zoning
	 Site
	 Plat
	 Site Plan 2
	 Photo
	 Application
	 Owner Notification List

	 Consider Variance to the City's Unified Development Code, Section 3.102(A)(1), General Standards, Building Separation, Lot 12 & 16, Bel-Air Estates Subdivision, located at 2507 North Vineyard Avenue and 2523 North Vineyard Avenue, as requested by Rene Barrera, P.E. on behalf of DGV, L.P. - Dr. Parul Desai, Member
	 Photo
	 Report
	 Development Map
	 Aerial
	 Zoning
	 Site
	 Plat
	 Site Plan
	 Site Plan 2
	 Photo
	 Application
	 Owner Notification List

	 Consider Variances to the City's Unified Development Code, Section 5.207(F), Easements, Encroachments and Removal of Encroachments and Section 7.102(D)(2); Nonconformities; General Provisions; Alteration, Enlargement, or Abandonment; Nonconforming Uses, Lot 60, Ebony Terrace No. 2 Unit C Subdivision, Located at 1207 Jo Ann Court, as requested by Letisia Caballero
	 Report
	 Development Map
	 Aerial
	 Zoning
	 Site
	 Plat
	 Site Plan
	 Photo
	 Application
	 Owner Notification List

	 Attendance Roster
	Blank Page
	Blank Page



